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CORPORATE PROFILE

EEERE

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”] was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands under the Company law, Chapter 22 (law
3 of 1961

The Company’s domicile was changed to Bermuda by way of

, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

de-registration in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an
exempted company under the laws of Bermuda on 10 August 2016
(Bermuda time). The shares of the Company are listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 18 March 2011

The Company and ifs subsidiaries (the “Group”] were principally
engaged in the production and sales of marble and marble related
products in China. The Group is a mining operator, focusing on
marble products, and owned the largest beige marble mine, namely
Zhangjiaba Mine, which is located in Zhenjiang Village, Xiangshui
County, Jiangyou City of Sichuan Province, China, in terms of
marble reserves, according to the certification issued by China
Stone Material Association (R EIA#M & ) in August 2010. The
mining permit of Zhangjiaba Mine was issued on 21 February
2011 and will expire on 21 February 2021.

According to the competent person’s report dated 7 March
2011, the Zhangjiaba Mine contains 44.2 million cubic mefers
The block rate is
expected fo be 38% on the marble resources, which is equivalent

of measured and indicated marble resources.

fo an estimated 16.8 million cubic meters of proved and probable
marble reserves.

4 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE PROFILE 1R ZR5FE

RESOURCES AND RESERVES

The resources and reserves estimates for marble stones of
Zhangjiaba Mine in Sichuan Province as at 31 December 2019
under JORC Code (as defined in Chapter 18 of the Listing Rules)

are set out in the following table:

JORC Resource and Reserve Class

R S fi B
TRMFH20196 12831 AR FJORCEA (F
EREMRANEI8F)MM)IERFGELE
AAREERREE:

2019
20195
Cubic meter

3 T3 K

2018
20184

Cubic meter

5K

14.86 million B &
26.82 million B &

15.06 million B&
27.18 million B&

41.68 million B &

42 .24 million B &

5.30 million B8
9.56 million BE

4.87 million B &
8.82 million B &

JORCERKFEEHI

Measured Resource REER
Indicated Resource HETEEIR
Total Resource BER
Proved Reserve FEHFE
Probable Reserve BEEE
Total Reserve ks

14.86 million B&

13.69 million B &

Note:

The resources and reserves for marble stones of Zhangjiaba Mine were estimated based
on the independent competent person’s report dated on 7 March 2011 (as shown in
the Company's Prospectus). The increases and decreases due to mining consumption

and exploration during the year were confirmed by internal experts.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FRERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of
China Kingstone Mining Holdings Llimited (the “Company”) and ifs
subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results

of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 ["FY2019").

FINAL RESULTS

For FY2019, the Group recorded revenue of RMB65.7 million
(FY2018: RMB67.7 million) and a gross profit of RMB4.4
million (FY2018: RMB4.5 million), representing an decrease of

approximately 3.0% and 2.2%, respectively compared fo those for
the year ended 31 December 2018 ("FY2018").

Net loss affributable to owners of the Company was RMB68.5
million for FY2019, as compared fo net loss of RMB19.3 million
attributable to owners of the Company for FY2018. Basic loss per
share for FY2019 was RMB2.4 cents, as compared to basic loss of
RMBO.7 cents per share for FY2018.

BUSINESS REVIEWS AND PROSPECTS

The China economy is showing a sign of slowdown resulting from
the US-China trade war that has simmered for over 18 months.
Though the phase one inferim agreement has been made in
December 2019 fo prevent a further escalation of the trade war, it
is expected that the next round of the negotiation between the US
and China would get tougher once they begin tackling the thorny
issues on which they had clashed. The China economy has not got
out of woods yet. Furthermore, in early of year 2020, the outbreak
of new coronavirus pneumonia epidemic (the “New Coronavirus”)
in China followed hard on the heels of the phase one's US-China
trade truce. It looks sef to further dampen sentiment in the market. To
a large extent the marble product businesses of the Group hinges
upon the economic prospect of China. The Group has been left
reeling from the double blow of the US-China frade war and New
Coronavirus facing an uncertain future in the coming years.

6 ChinaKingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FFE3Res

During FY2019, the construction industry in China was still strong
but its growth was obviously slowing down which resulted from
the trade pressure exerted by the US in the trade war, dentfing the
economic growth in China. The Group realized that many small and
medium-sized constfruction companies were struggling to stay afloat
and facing financial distress. The Group expects that the weakening
demand of marble slabs will continue amid the deceleration in
economic growth in China. Under this highly uncertain economic
environment, the Group has to be exira cautious of and closely
monitor any further investment of working capital in the marble slab
business in order to contain the credit risk of our customers.

In these years, the Group has made strides in the development of
marble slag business. Sales of marble slags grew by 2.3 times in
two-years' time from RMB7.7 million in 2017 to RMB25.8 million
in 2019. The marble slag business has become one of the Group's
business focuses. Despite the uncertainty in China economy, the
marble slag business has shown strong resilience to the external
headwinds. The Group expects that the sales of marble slags will
grow at a bit slower pace in the coming years as the economic
activities in China are likely to decline due to the spread of the
New Coronavirus.

The Group had set the business expansion plan of a downstream
vertical integration to GCC business. The Group entered into
a non-binding memorandum of understanding with a GCC
manufacture as joinf venture partner which possesses rich experience
on operation of a GCC production in a bid to plunge info the
ground calcium carbonate powder ["GCC") business in Jiangyou
City in April 2017. However, several months after the MOU
was signed, the Group halted the cooperation plan with the joint
venture partner as there was a litigation of the Group involving the
Zhangjiaba mine that might discourage the joint venture partner
from making progress on the GCC business with the Group. The
re-negotiation of the cooperation had been set in motion after the
setlement of the litigation in July 2018. Unfortunately, after over
one-year's negotiation, the Group was unable to nail down the new
cooperation agreement and foresees that the chance of making a
deal with the joint veniure pariner is very low. Despite this setback,
the Group is still digging its heels in developing GCC business as
it allows the Group to achieve product diversification and result in
a synergy. The Group is exploring other alternatives to achieve this

business plan of GCC.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FFEERes

The Company will continue to consolidate the production and
operations of marble stone and its related business as well as make
good use of our marble resources. On the other hand, the Group
will also continue to explore new business opportunities so arising in
order to maximize shareholders’ value in the future.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude
to all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for
their aftention and support to the Group in the difficult times. | would
also like to thank our directors, management team and all staff of
the Group for their dedication and hard work to the Group for the
past year.

Zheng Yonghui

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 11 May 2020
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AEBRKEBBRALERKEREARENR
BMEBUARZTENBRMANAKELER 5
—HE AEBERRTHEERS B B3R
BT EBHBUABBRROBESR AL

M 3t
AAHEEBERLBRH2ERE EERA
MEBBE BHESAAEENERA T
RENEE AALE RANEHAEEN
EE TEEENRRBEIERE S8
EERE A -

HITEF
R oK i

BB 2020F5H11H

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRE51sRI S i

BUSINESS REVIEW
Marble Slab Business

Marble stones are widely used in construction and decoration
industry for decorative purposes due to its bright colour and lustrous
finish. Marble slags are used in application such as interior and
exterior decoration, laying pavements, stairs, flooring and furniture.
The Group sells marble slabs through some distributors or purchasing
agents which have a strong track record and broad sales and
marketing network with the property developers and construction
companies in China.

In view of the rapid urbanization in China and the Belt and Road
initiative that have driven the infrastructure development, the Group
had expected the marble slab business to ratchet up with upbeat
forecast. However, during FY2019, the growth in construction
industry was apparently slowing down and facing a stiff challenge
even as the China government stepped up the stimulus amid the
escalating US-China trade war. The US and China imposed trade
tariffs across a variety of products in a seemingly endless series
of fitfortat measures, including most kinds of building materials.
The Group recorded a decrease of 24.1% in sales of marble
slabs from RMB52.6 million for FY2018 to RMB39.9 million for
FY2019, resulting from a decrease in demand of the marble slabs
for decorative purpose. The Group expects weakening demand
in marble slabs will continue for years if the trade disputes drag
on and the spread of the New Coronavirus persists. The Group
has to maintain a high degree of vigilance against unpredictable
internafional developments and sensitive external factors that may
adversely affect the Group’s marble slab business.

Marble Slag and Calcium Carbonate Business
Marble slags are produced in the course of stripping overburden
at Zhangjioba mine and by crushing the cracked marble stones.
Marble slag is a core raw material for the production of GCC. The
Group sells the marble slags to the GCC manufacturers which are
close to the Zhangjiaba mine. Revenue attributable to the marble
slag business was approximately RMB25.8 million for FY2019,
representing an increase of RMB10.6 million as compared to
RMB15.2 million for FY2018. Such increase was primarily due
to ramping up the production of marble slags through speeding
up the stripping of ore. Demand of marble slags from the GCC
manufacturers sfays strong.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE351smb il

The Group plans to embark on the GCC business and integrate with
the existing marble slag business. GCC is produced by the grinding
process to fransform marble slags into a powder. GCC is widely
used as raw materials in the production of building and construction
materials, paper, plastics, paints, coatings, and personal health
and food production. The Group may utilize its own rich marble
resources from Zhangjiaba mine to produce marble slags and then
further process to GCC. The Group expects that the downstream
vertical integration will result in a synergy that allows the Group's
GCC business to become competitive as the Group has a stable
supply of marble slags in its own hand and enjoys cost advantages.
During FY2019, the Group was still undergoing the negotiation for

the cooperation agreement but no deal has been made yet.

Exploration, Development and Production Activities
There was no geological exploration activity during the year. The
Group focuses on the development and mining at the Zhangjiaba
mine. The Zhangjiaba mine located in Sichuan Province of China
contains 44.2 million cubic meters of measured and indicated
marble resources, which represents 16.8 million cubic mefers of
proved and probable marble reserves based on a block rate of
38%, according fo the independent competent person'’s report dated
on 7 March 2011 (as shown in the Company’s Prospectus).

The Zhangjiaba mine is mainly divided info the eastern mining
zone and the western mining zone. During FY2019 and FY2018,
the Group continues to carry out the stripping of the overburden
materials at the the both eastern and western zone of the deposit.
The deposit in these areas is still cracked. The Group expects
that the further development of the mine to lower benches will be
required for large block production and the block production will
commence not earlier than year 2021.

During FY2019, the aggregate expenditure of the mining operation
of the Group was approximately RMB23.9 million (FY2018
RMB20.7 million), which mainly included depreciation on property,
plant and equipment of RMB7.6 million (FY2018: RMB6.8 million),
consumables and fuel of RMB3.54 million (FY2018: RMB3.84
million), safety protection related expenses of RMB2.3 million
(FY2018: RMB1.1 million] and subcontracting cost for stripping of
RMBQ.8 million [FY2018: Nil).

10 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE351smb il

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately RMB2.0 million
or 3.0% from approximately RMB67.7 million for FY2018 to
approximately RMB65.7 million for FY2019. The decrease was
primarily due to a combined effect of (i) a decrease of RMB12.7
million in sales of marble slabs from RMB52.6 million for FY2018 to
RMB39.9 million for FY2019, resulting from the weakening demand
in marble slab, and (i) an increase of RMB10.6 million in sales of
marble slags from RMB15.2 million for FY2018 to RMB25.8 million
for FY2019, as result of ramping up the production of marble slags
through speeding up the stripping.

Revenue by products

$ 25 e J

LN
AEBZWRABR20I8HBHFENNHARE
67,700,000 @ 2 #) AR #¥2,000,000
TH3. 0% E201 0 BMERENHARKE
65,700,000 - BB TIEERR(I) AKX
BEARMAERRRERAE AR EEH
2018 R EFE W) AR % 52,600,000 8 &
AR®12,700,000t Z201 98 L E & A
R #39,900,0007T » K (ii) B & 18 IR K R &
EREABABEENESEEHAREABEEH
ER2018FBFEMHARKES5,200,0007T
HEMAR®I0,600,000/t Z20198 B &
BWAR¥25,800,000tHiEE BB -

REEmME S WA
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2019 2018 Change
2019% 20184 23
RMB’000 RMB'000 %

ARBTT ARBTT

Marble slabs ANEBARM 39,892 52,567 -24.1%

Marble slags RNERRED 25,797 15,152 +70.3%
65,689 67,719

Analysis by sales volume and selling price REEREEETHIN

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2019 2018 Change
2019% 20184 2%
Sales volume: e
Marble slabs [square meter) REARRM (FFXK) 139,062 204,566 -32.0%
Marble slags (ton] RERED (HE) 1,135,574 563,187 +101.6%
Average selling prices: FHEE:
Marble slabs [RMB per square meter] REBARM
(BERRARETT) 286.9 257.0 +11.6%
Marble slags (RMB per fon) RELRE (BMARET) 22.7 26.9 -15.6%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE351smb il

Gross profit and Gross profit margin

Gross profit decreased by approximately RMBO.1 million or 2.2%
from approximately RMB4.5 million for FY2018 to approximately
RMB4.4 million for FY2019. The decrease was primarily due to a
decrease in gross profit of marble slabs, resulting from a decrease
in ifs sales.

Gross profit margin remained at 6.7% for FY2018 and FY2019,
respectively. Increase in gross profit margin of marble slabs, resulting
from an increase of 11.6% in average selling price of marble slabs
from RMB257.0 per square meter for FY2018 to RMB286.9 per
square meter for FY2019, was offset by a decrease in gross profit
margin of marble slags, resulting from a decrease of 15.6% in
average selling price of marble slags from RMB26.9 per ton for

FY2018 to RMB22.7 per ton for FY2019.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased from RMB1.2 million for
FY2018 to RMB2.5 million for FY2019. The increase was primarily
due fo an increase in fransportation cost and direct sales tax,
resulting from an increase in the sales volume of marble slags.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by RMB12.4 million from
RMB29.4 million for FY2018 to RMB41.8 million for FY2019.
The increase was primarily due to an increase of RMB11.0 million
in share option expenses in relation fo share opfions granted to
the Directors and cerfain employees of the Group during FY2019
and an increase of HK$9.4 million in additional provisions for
litigation in relation to a dispute that the plaintiff claimed against
the Group fo refund the deposit and part of consideration for a
loan assignment agreement dated @ August 2013 but the Group
considered it should be forfeited and non-refundable.

The Group has implemented refrenchment measures, including a
reduction of staff cost, rental expenses and other general operating
expenses since latfe 2018 in order to increase the effectiveness of
the operation of the Group and weather any difficulties we may
face under the circumstances of slowing economic growth in the

PRC.
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Impairment loss of trade receivables

The Group made an impairment loss of RMB28.2 million on frade
receivable for FY2019, representing an increase by RMB19.9
million, as compared to RMB8.3 million for FY2018. The increase
in impairment losses for FY2019 primarily comprised:

1) A trade receivable that was secured by a property located in
Inner Mongolia (the “Pledged Property”). The pledgee of the
Pledged Property defaulted in 2012 and the Group took legal
action fo recover the trade receivable. The court judgment
was handed down fo grant the right of transfer of the title of
Pledged Property to the Group in August 2016. The Group
has taken steps to sell the trade receivable associated with
Pledged Property but in vain for over the past three years. An
additional impairment loss of RMB®.4 million in relation to the
frade receivable was provided during FY2019;

2)  An increase of RMB10.5 million in an impairment loss of
on trade receivables primori|y in relation to the marble slab
business was provided for FY2019, due fo an increase in the
expected credit loss rate for FY2019. The Group expects that
the weakening demand of marble slabs will continue amid
the deceleration in economic growth in China. The Group's
ultimate customers are mainly small-medium sized enterprises
in China which generally faces financial difficulties owing to
the fightening financial market conditions and has delayed the
payment of our invoices.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

The Group recorded a loss of RMB68.5 million for FY2019,
representing an increase of RMB49.2 million as compared to
RMB19.3 million for FY2018, as a result of a combined effect of |i)
a gain of RMB15.7 million on reversal of provision for litigation due
fo a seflement of a claim against the Group being reached with
the plaintiff during FY2018; (i) an increase of RMB19.9 million
in provision for impairment loss on trade receivables, and [iii) an
increase of RMB12.4 million in administrative expenses.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total equity interests were
approximately RMB347.5 million (31 December 2018: RMB401.2
million), representing a decrease of 13.4% as compared with that
as at 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly attributable to
total comprehensive loss of RMB&4.7 million recorded for FY2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB49.0 million (31 December 2018: RMB6S5. 1
million). Cash and bank balances were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group has
adequate financial resources to meet the anticipated future liquidity
requirement and capital expenditure commitment.

As at 31 December 2019, a loan from a director (included in
amount due to directors) amounted to approximately RMB4.3 million
(31 December 2018: Nil) was unsecured, interestbearing at 10%
per annum, mature in one year and dominated in Hong Kong
dollars. It was accounted for as current liabilities of the Group. The
Group does not currently use any derivatives fo manage the interest
rate risk. Gearing ratfio, representing the loan divided by fotal

equity, was 0.01 (31 December 2018: Nil).

Capital Expenditure
During FY2019, the Group's capital expenditure amounted to
RMB3.3 million (FY2018: RMB2.8 million), which was primarily

related to acquisition of property, plant and equipments.

Charge of the Group's assets
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any charges on
its assefs.

Significant investment held
As at 31 December 2019, there were no material investments held
by the Group.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group principally operates its businesses in the PRC. The Group
is not exposed fo significant foreign exchange risk as most of the
Group's business transactions, assefs and liabilities are principally
denominated in RMB, which is the functional and reporting currency
of the Group, except certain administrative expenses of the Hong
Kong office which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group has not entered info any foreign exchange contracts as
hedging measures.
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Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Future plans for material investments or capital assets
Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have
any plan for material investments or capital assefs in the coming

year as at 31 December 2019.

Environmental Policies and Performance

Details of environment policies and performance refers to the
“"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” contained in this
annual report for further information on the work done and efforts
made by the Group on environment protfection, legal compliance
and other aspects for the sustainable growth and development of
the businesses of the Group.

Compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations
During FY2019 and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

Key Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognizes employees as valuable assets of the Group.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to employees
and reviews staff benefit regularly. The Group infends to use ifs best
effort to attract and attain appropriate and suitable personnel to
provide services to the Group.

The Group attaches importance to the relationships with its customers
and suppliers. The Group believes that building a long-term
beneficial relationship with each of them is of paramount importance
to establish mutual trust, loyalty and business development and on
which the Group's success and sustainability rely.

The Group will continue to maintain and strengthen its relationship
with its customers through regular contacts with them. It is the
industrial norm that the marble mine operator usually selects a few
maijor distributors and manufacturers, which has production sites that
are close to the marble mine in order o save fransporfation costs,
management costs as well as sales and marketing costs. Thus,
the Directors consider that there is no significant risk associated
with reliance on major customers due fo the nature of the Group's
products.
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Human Resources
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had employed a tofal of 31
December 2018: 25 employees). The tofal staff

cost, including directors’ emoluments, share options benefit and

employees (31

pension scheme contribution, was approximately RMB17.2 million
for FY2019 (FY2018: RMB6.8 million).

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends in Hong
Kong and the PRC, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject to the
Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute a discretionary
bonus fo its employees as an incentive for their confribution to the

Group.

Use of proceeds from fund raising activities

On 3 March 2017 and 24 April 2017, the Company entered into
an agreement and supplemental agreement with an underwriter by
issuing 2,360,068,975 rights shares to qualifying shareholders
by way of the rights issue at subscription price of HK$0.12 per
rights share on the basis of five rights shares for every share in issue
on the record date. The net proceeds from the rights issue were
approximately HK$276.5 million. The rights issue was made for the
purposes of (i) approximately HK$191.8 million (RMB170.0 million)
for the contribution of funding in the joint venture company for the
calcium carbonate business, in which approximately HK$149.2
million (RMB132.2 million) for the setup of manufacturing building
lincluding the property, plant and equipment) and approximately
HK$42.6 million (RMB37.8 million) for the general working capital
of the business; (ii] approximately HK$33.8 million (RMB30.0
million) for general working capital of the Group, including but
not limited fo the operafing cash used for the daily production of
marble and marble related products, the setilement of outstanding
accounts payable to vendors and the general operating expenses
of the Group; and [iii) the remaining net proceed of approximately
HK$50.9 million (RMB45.2 million) for the seftlement of the
potfential damages arising from the litigation in relafion to the breach
of a written underwriting agreement and between the underwriter of
the open offer announced by the Company on 14 May 2015.
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As at 29 September 2017, the Company resolved to change
the use of the unutilized net proceeds of HK$50.9 million for
the sefflement of the potential damages arising from the litigation
to use the unutilized proceeds for [i] purchasing machineries
for replacement of well-worn mining equipment [approximately
HK$15.0 million);
[approximately HK$20.0 million), and (iii) general working capital
(approximately HK$15.9 million). For defails, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 September 2017

(ii) investments in the marble slabs business

As at 31 December 2019, the net proceeds had been utilised as
follows:

R2017F9A29R - A RBRZEKB AR AFR
1§ RIEFE 50,900,000 T BRIt AN 4
ERRELEZEEEEREZEEREARDA
ISR ERARN(BERMAERKRENKE

B (#15,000,0008 ) : (i) IEKRKEA
R 7 (4920,000,000/% 7T) :&(iii)—Q
%@ﬁ@(%"]]S,QO0,000/ﬁﬁ) ui‘ﬁ uFJ

BARRIHEA2017F9R20R 2 A& -

R2019F12A31H - FIERBEFECHARN
T

Intended use of Actual use of

proceeds proceeds
FRBEREZ FREREZ
SrE AR BERAR
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
The contribution of funding for the calcium A ENBERIREL TS X
carbonate business
— The setup of manufacturing building —BEREEBF (BEDE-
lincluding the property, plant and P K& )
equipment) 149,150 60,000
— General working capital of — MRS RBH—REEES
the calcium carbonate business 42,610 -
General working capital of the Group AEBEN—REEES
— Purchasing of machineries for replacement —BERWAEKRED
of wellworn mining equipment RIER B 15,000 15,000
— Marble slabs business —REBARMER 20,000 61,220
— Seftlement of litigation involving —HEF RO RED
Sichuan Jinshida [Note 1) BFEA (BIRET) - 24 976
— Other general working capital —Hit—REEED 49,780 63,743
276,540 224,939
Note 1: MFET -

For the details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2 November
2017, 17 April 2018, 23 April 2018, 18 May 2018, 23 May 2018, 13 June
2018, 20 June 2018, 26 June 2018 and 5 July 2018
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Intended use of the unutilized proceeds and/or the
expected timeline

In April 2017, the Group entered in a non-legal binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with a ground calcium
carbonate manufacturer to form a joint venture company to extend
the downstream business of calcium carbonate production in
Jiangyou City, Sichuan Province, the PRC.

During FY2018, the JV partner obtained the land use approval for
part of the planned production site from the land and Resources
Department of Jiangyou City and the Construction Permit on site from
the relevant authority in China. In the wake of the seftlement of the
litigation involving the auction of the Zhong]iobo mine in Ju|y 2018,
the Group and JV Pariner eagerly underwent the re-negotiation of
the operational details of the cooperation.

In June 2018, the Group and a joint venture partner (the “JV
Partner”), who is the shareholder of the ground calcium carbonate
manufacturer, entered into a joint venture agreement (the “JV
agreement’] in relation to formation of a joint venture company (the
"IV Company”) to operate the ground calcium carbonate (“GCC")
production in Jiangyou City, Sichuan Province, the PRC. In August
2018, an equity joint venture company (the “JV Company’] was
formed as to 51% by the Group and 49% by the JV Partner in
accordance with the JV agreement. The Group also made the
deposit payment of approximately RMB51.6 million for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment in respect of the GCC business.
However, given that certain fund needs for the GCC business
development plan have already been contributed by the JV Partner
as opposed fo the Group under the MOU, the JV Partner demanded
to adjust the terms of the cooperation framework. The Group and JV
Partner worked on the negotiation for over one-year. Unfortunately,
the Group foresees that there is a very low chance of it making
a deal with the JV Partner. Despite this setback, the Group is still
digging its heel in the GCC business which allows the Group to
achieve product diversification and result in a synergy. The Group
is exploring other alternatives to develop the GCC business. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group expects that the infended use
of unutilized proceeds will be applied to the GCC business and
general working capital of the Group.
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During FY2018,
approximately RMB51.3 million (equivalent to approximately

the Group made a deposit payment of

HK$60.0 million) to suppliers for the acquisition of plant and
equipment in respect of the GCC business. As the negotiation of
the cooperation agreement may be falling apart, the Group has
withheld the delivery of the plant and equipment until further nofice.
The timeline of the cash deployment for the GCC business has not
been defermined yet.

The GCC business plan was unable to be materialized as planned
for the reasons as disclosed above and dragged on for almost two
years. The Group reassigned part of net proceeds for the GCC
business to meet the on-going need for the general working capital
of the Group, including the working capital for the existing marble
business, payment for the setflement of litigation and other general
administrative expenses, such as rent, salary, legal fees.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSHREIREBEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zheng Yonghui (EB5kf&E) , aged 51, is an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Zheng has been an executive director of the
Company since @ April 2019. Mr. Zheng has over 20 years of
global business experience around many regions, including Greater
China, Asia and Europe. He has worked as general manager of
Guangzhou Bao Shui District Zhongjian International Co., lid* (&
MARTE R A B EIBR AR 2 F]) and general manager of Hong Kong
Tak Shing Trading Company Llimited (BERHE HER L F]) .
He is currently a chairman of the board of directors of Wuxi Heyoo
Science and Technology Co. lid* (fE#HEXKEHEROHBR AR,
a company listed on National Equities Exchange Quotations (NEEQ:
831007). He has accumulated rich experience in infernational
trade and business management.

Zhang Jianzhong

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong (3R &) ("Mr. Zhang”), aged 62, is
an executive director of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been
an executive director of the Company since 30 August 2013.
Mr. Zhang is an associate professor, conferred by Ministry of
Geology and Mineral Resources of the People’s Republic of China,
and holds a bachelor degree in Engineering and Llaw. Since 1991,
Mr. Zhang has been involved in management work relating to stone
mining, processing and marketing. From 1991 to May 2002,
he worked in Wuhan lingda Stone Materials Co., ltd.* (EZEH
EAMABMRADRF), which is a company founded by the China
University of Geosciences* (R EI#IE K2 ) and other parties in
1990, where he had taken up posts such as deputy factory director,
office head and factory director. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Zhang served as deputy general manager of Wuhan Zhongdida
Assets Management Co., Ud. (REFHMAREELEBRAT) .
Mr. Zhang has extensive expertise in geology, and sophisticated
experience in sfone mine exploration and development.

Zhang Weijun

Mr. Zhang Weijun (5R&E) ("“Mr. Zhang”), aged 61, is an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been an
executive director of the Company since 24 December 2015.
Mr. Zhang is primarily responsible for the business development of
the Group. Mr. Zhang has around 10 years of experience in mining
industry and is currenily a vice president of a mining company in

the PRC.
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Zhang Cuiwei

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei (5R2 %) ("“Ms. Zhang”), aged 51, is an
executive director of the Company. Ms. Zhang was first appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 30 April 2013 and
ceased to be an executive director of the Company on 14 July
2015. Ms. Zhang has been re-appointed as executive Director
with effect from 1 January 2016. Ms. Zhang graduated in Foreign
Llanguages and literature from Jilin University of the PRC. Ms. Zhang
is primarily responsible for corporate operational management and
administration of the Group. Ms. Zhang has about 20 years of
experience in corporate management, personnel and administration
affairs.

Zhang Mian

Mr. Zhang Mian (5R%#) , aged 62, is an executive director of
the Company. Mr. Zhang has been an executive director of the
Company since 4 February 2019. Mr. Zhang Mian graduated
from South China Normal University in China and has many
years of experience in journalism and communication and media
management. He has worked in one of the most influential
mainstream newspaper group in South China. He has also
accumulated rich experience in business management in the fields of
construction, decoration engineering, packaging and printing, new
material development and application.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wang Yi Hua

Ms. Wang Yi Hua (E&#) ["Ms. Wang”"), aged 49, is an
independent non-executive director of the Company. Ms. Wang
has been an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 28 December 2015. Ms. Wang holds a Bachelor Degree
in Management from the Party School of the Central Committee
of the Communist Party of China (Hubei Branch] and obtained the
Qualification Certificate of Speciality and Technology approved and
issued by Ministry of Personnel, PRC with speciality in intermediate
level of accountancy conferred by the Ministry of Finance, PRC.
Ms. Wang has over 20 years of experience in finance, accounting
and relevant management gained from an investment company in

the PRC.
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Sheng Guoliang

Mr. Sheng Guoliang (BBl R ) ["Mr. Sheng”), aged 52, is an
independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Sheng
has been an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 28 December 2015. Mr. Sheng has completed a three
years' course in Public Affairs Management at Huzhou University.
Mr. Sheng has around 5 years of experience in mining industry and
hotel management business, respectively.

Yang Ruimin
Mr. Yang Ruimin (#% 880 ("Mr. Yang"), aged 37, is an
independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Yang has
been an independent non-executive director of the Company since
11 June 2018. Mr. Yang holds a bachelor degree in Economic and
Administrative Management from PLA Nanjing Political College (&
BARMBRERRBUEMR) .

experience in human resource management in different industries.

Mr. Yang has over 10 years of
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXEiIfHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company sirives fo attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders and enhance the
shareholders” value.

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “listing Rules”) for
FY2019 except for a deviation from code provisions A.2.1, A.1.8
and E.1.2 of CG Code.

Deviation from A.2.1 of CG Code

Under code provision A.2.1 of CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer ["CEQ") should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing. During FY2019, there is
no officer carrying the title of CEO and also no chairman being
appointed by the Board. The duties of the CEO are undertaken by
executive directors of the Company while the independent board
members assume the role and responsibility of chairman to ensure
that the board is effective in its task of setting and implementing the
company's direction and strategy. The Board considers that there is
sufficient balance of power and the current arrangement maintains a
strong management position of the Company.

Deviation from A.1.8 of CG Code

Under code provision of A.1.8 of CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against the Directors. Currently, the Company does not have
insurance cover in this respect as the Board believes that, with
the current infernal control system and the close supervision of the
management, the Director's risk of being sued or getting involved in
litigation in their capacity as a director of the Company is relatively
low. Nevertheless, the Board will review the need for insurance
cover from time fo time.
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Deviation from E.1.2 of CG Code

Under the code provision of E.1.2 of CG Code, the chairman of
the Board should atftend the annual general meeting. The Board
elected an executive Director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, to attend and
chair the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS” SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Llisted Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities fransactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries with all directors of the Company
(the “Board” or "Directors”), all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
fransaction throughout the year ended 31 December 2019,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
() Composition of the Board

The Board has maintained a balance of skills and experience
appropriafe for the business requirements and objectives of
the Group and for the exercise of independent judgment.
The Board currently comprises five executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Each Director of
the Company has been appointed on the strength of his/her
caliber, experience, professional qualification and potential
fo contribute to the proper guidance of the Group and its
businesses.

The composition of the Board was set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Yonghui (appointed on @ April 2019)
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong

Mr. Zhang Weijun

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Mian (appointed on 4 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wang Yihua

Mr. Sheng Guoliang

M. Yang Ruimin

During FY2019, to the best knowledge of the Company, there

was no financial, business or family relationship among the
members of the Board.

24 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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(1)

Pursuant to the Bye-aws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject fo re election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only unfil the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re election. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
one-third but not less than one—fhird] shall retire from office by
rotation. Each director shall refire at least once every three
years.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 22 of this
annual report.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
was appointed for a term of three years, subject to re-election
by rofation at least once every three years. The re-election
of each of these INEDs who has served on the Board for
more than nine years is subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

The Company received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board has reviewed the independent non-executive Directors
and considered that all of them are independent with the
definition of the Listing Rules.

The Company complied with requirements under Rule

13.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Llisting Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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() Attendance of Directors at the board meeting

26

and general meeting

The Directors can aftend meeting in person or by means of
such telephone, electronic or other communication facilities as
permit all persons participating in the meeting fo communicate
with each other simuHoneous\\/ and instomoneous|y in
accordance with the Bye-laws. The company secrefary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) will assist the chairman
of the Board and/or executive Director to prepare the agenda
of the meeting and each Director may request to include any
matters in the agenda for the regular Board meetings. All
Directors may seek the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. All directors will also be provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and
upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company's expense. All minutes of Board meefings
were recorded in sufficient detail, including matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board and are open for
inspection by Directors.

The By-laws contain provisions requiring Directors fo abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

There were 9 board meetings and 1 general meeting held
during FY2019. The attendance of each Director at the board
meetfings and general meeting is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEBITEBRH

Director Board meeting  General meeting
B= Exged BRRERE
Mr. Zheng Yonghui B oK R 5 A4

([appointed on @ April 2019) (R2019F4A9BEZ ) 4/5 1/1
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REBZ L Q/9 0/1
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong RERIGLE Q/9 0/1
Mr. Zhang Weijun REEILE 6/9 0/1
Mr. Zhang Mian R#ELE

(appointed on 4 February 2019) (R2019F2R4BEZ1T) 6/8 1/1
Ms. Wang Yinhua TEFELL 6/9 0/1
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BRERLE Q/9 0/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin ST E 3/9 0/1
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(IV) The Board and Management

(V)

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Group, which includes leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions,
internal control, risk management and performances. The
principal functions of the Board is to (1) convene general
meetfings and report the Board's work at genero| meetings;
(2) implement the resolutions passed by the shareholders
in general meefings; (3) consider and approve strategies,
financial objectives, annual budget, investment proposals of
the Group; (4) formulate the proposals for profit distributions;
(5) assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Group; and (6] exercise other powers, functions and
duties conferred by the shareholders in general meeting. It is
the responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s
circumsfances and fo ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
obijectives.

The management team is delegated with the authority and
responsible by the Board for the day-to-day management of
the Group and is accountable to the Board. The management
team has overall responsibility for formulating the business
strategies and development plan of the Group and is also
responsible for the supervision and execution of the plans
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance its operating results and quality of
its performance.
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(V1)

28

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. A fruly diverse Board will include and make
good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, gender and other qualities of the
Directors. These differences will be considered in defermining
the optimum composition of the Board. All appointments of the
Directors are made on meritocracy, and will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises eight
Directors, amongst them, three are Independent Non-executive
Directors, thereby promoting critical review and control of
the management process. The Board is also characterized by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender,
age, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition,
the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) considered that the requirements of the Policy had
been met.

Continuous professional development of
Directors

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments
fo or updates on relevant laws, rules and regulations. In
addition, the Company encourages the Directors to enroll
in a wide range of professional development courses and
seminars relating fo the Llisting Rules, Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and corporate governance practices so that
they can continuously improve their relevant knowledge and
skills. The Company will, if necessary, provide timely and
regular frainings to the Directors to ensure that they are kept
abreast with the latest requirements under the Listing Rules and
corporafe governance pracfices.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer (the
"CEQ") are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence
and proper checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the
business strategy and direction of the Company and has executive
responsibility, provides leadership for the Board and ensures
proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of its
responsibilities. The CEO is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company’s strategies and the co-ordination of
overall business operations.

During FY2019, no officer carried the title of CEO and no
chairman was appointed by the Board. The duties of the CEO
are underfaken by executive directors of the Company while the
independent board members assumed the role and responsibility
of the chairman to ensure that the board is effective in its task of
setting and implementing the company’s direction and strategy. The
Board considers that there is sufficient balance of power and the
current arrangement maintains a strong management position of the
Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

() Audit Committee
The audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) of the Company
has been established by the Board with specific writtlen terms
of reference and all members of the Audit Committee are

INED:s.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the primary duties of the audit committee of the Company
are mainly to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external audifor,
the review of the financial statements and material advice
in respect of financial reporting and the oversight of internal
control procedures of the Group.
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As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Ms. Wang Yihua, Mr. Sheng Guoliang
and Mr. Yang Ruimin. Ms. Wang Yihua is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

During FY2019, the Audit Commitlee held 2 meefings fo,
including but not limited to, 1) review the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2018, 2] review the inferim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2019 before their submission
to the Board and monitored the integrity of such financial
statements, 3] review and assess the auditor's independence
or objective in relation to the provision of non-audit services; 4)
review the Company’s financial positions, internal control and
risk management systems and give suggestions to the Board
and 5) meet with independent auditor to discuss the nature
and scope of the audit and the areas of concemn.

The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of
the members of the Audit Committee at the audit committee
meeting are sef out below:
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Attendance/
Members of Audit Committee Number of meeting
BENEEERE HEBITEBRRHY
Ms. Wang Yihua (Chairman) TEEZL (£E) 2/2
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BRERELE 2/2
Mr. Yang Ruimin ke kel 2/2
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() Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of
the Company has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Remuneration
Committee are INED:s.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are mainly fo make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and the senior management of the Group, review
performance-based remuneration and ensure none of the
Directors determine their own remuneration.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Sheng Guoliang and
Mr. Yang Ruimin, and one executive Director, namely
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei. Mr. Sheng Guoliang is the chairman of

the Remuneration Committee

During FY2019, the Remuneration Committee held 3 meefing
to approve and review the remuneration packages of the
Directors and the management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility
tfo determine the remuneration packages on individual
executive Direcfors and senior management, in compliance

with B.1.2 (c](i) of CG Code.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee and
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at
the remuneration committee meeting are set out below:
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Attendance/
Members of Remuneration Committee Number of meeting
FHEEERE HE/BTEERE
Mr. Sheng Guoliang (Chairman) BRERLE (FE) S/
Mr. Yang Ruimin BB E 1/3
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REBZ L 3/3
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() Nomination Committee
The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”] of
the Company has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are mainly to make recommendations to the Board on
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. Details of the
authority and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Commitiee
comprises two INED, namely Mr. Yang Ruimin and Mr. Sheng
Guoliang, and one executive Director, namely Ms. Zhang
Cuiwei. Mr. Yang Ruimin is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During FY2019, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings
fo nominate and make recommendation of candidates for
Directors and review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and concluded that members of the Board have
possessed the expertise and independence to carry out the
Board's functions and responsibilifies.

() REEES
EEGERUAATREEEE ([RE
FER)) RERTEARESE-

RERZZEGNRESRE RE2ZE
ENIZREARVERBEAEERA
EEEFEXNEMAL - BREFEN
ZEREZHCIFENETSFLER
ER-RRAZEBEENERIREENFE
ARARE MBI ER]

RABERH REZEEAMBBY
FRTEF (IERFEERBEBEARE
E)R—281TEF (MREHLL)E
RoGHBEERRBEZEEER -

R2019MBFER RHZEEEETT
QREHBARBEFTMHREARIEL AR
HEEZZARBRANEZTENRE BE
K YRREETEREABEZTZEMN
BERBIENABTEESNRERE
£

Attendance/
Members of Nomination Committee Number of meeting
REZESEERE HE T BITEBRRY
Mr. Yang Ruimin (Chairman) BHSEE (FE) 0/2
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BEREE 2/2
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REBHRLZL 2/2
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted a nomination policy (“Nomination Policy”) on

1 January 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as follows:

1. Objective

1.1

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable
candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders for election as directors
of the Company at general meetings or appoint him/her
to fill casual vacancies.

1.2 The Nomination Policy helps the Nomination Committee

and the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate fo the requirements of the Group's business
development.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1

The facfors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate.

*  Quadlifications and experience in the relevant
industries in which the Company's business is
involved or is going to be involved;

e Commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

®  Reputation for integrity; and

e Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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3. Nomination Procedures
3.1 The Nomination Committee shall call a meeting, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members
([if any) for consideration by the Nomination Committee
prior to its meeting. The Nomination Commitlee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by
Board members;

3.2 Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the
Company. The Nomination Committee may request
candidates to provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary;

3.3 The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed
candidate’s suitability with reference to the selection
criteria stated above and make recommendation(s) to the
Board'’s consideration and approval;

3.4 In the case of the reelection of a director at the general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall review the
overall contribution of the directors to the Company and
their services, their participation and performance within
the Board, and whether such director still meets the
needs to complement the Company's corporate strategy.

4 Review of the Nomination Policy
4.1 The Board will review the Nomination Policy from fime

to time.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's
financial statements for each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. The Company deploys appropriate
and sufficient resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concem basis. The Direcfors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps fo safeguard the assefs of the
Group and fo prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
fo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance, position
and prospects. The inferim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a fimely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable for the services provided for
FY2019 to Elite Partners CPA Llimited (“Elite Partners”) is set out

below:

Services rendered

AEEBOAKFE BHARE2AFHAEEE
B-HRRARAIR - ARABANRHARFEFERED
BETRUMORE DR EFBBBEERR
MEAR=ZEANRPARKFAE-

7 T i 5 I

B201 08 B F BRI G MR TN R E
NHTERETAEHFARAA (AR
CIDE T E TR

Fee paid/payable

BHORB B EAER
RMB'000

ARET T

Audit of financial statements e PR ES 486,957
Agreed-upon procedures of interim review #)E R EEMEF -
Financial and tax due diligence MR B ERAS =
Other non-audit services H A IEE RS 152,174
639,131

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and infernal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Commitlee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and fraining of staff and external
advisor of the Group's accounting, infernal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group's assets and stakeholder’s inferest.
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FES

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures to
respond fo the risks resulting from significant changes to the business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are

designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.

The management would identify the risks associated with the
business of the Group by considering both internal and external
factors and events which include political, economic, fechnology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritized based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opportunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follows:

- Risk refention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks:

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimize the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and infernal control system are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For FY2019, the Group has engaged an external advisory firm fo
perform the review on the risk management policy and procedures
and carry out the internal audit function to ensure the effectiveness
and efficiency of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group. There is no significant deficiency and weakness on
the internal control system that may affect the financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions has been

identified by the external advisory firm for FY2019.
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The Board reached the conclusion that the risk management
and internal control system and procedures of the Group were
reasonably in place and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Kee (“Mr. Cheung”) is the company secrefary
of the Company. He is the employee of the Company and has
adequate knowledge on the Company to discharge his duty as the
company secrefary of the Company. Mr. Cheung confirmed that he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for

FY2019.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

(I) Shareholders convene an special general

meeting

Pursuant to the Byedows and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, any one or more registered shareholders holding af
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the voting right
at general meetings of the Company [the “Requisitionists”)
shall, at all times, have the right, by writlen requisition that
must be signed by the Requisitionists to the Board deposited
at the registered office of the Company fo require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and such meeting
shall be held within three months after the deposit of such
requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the Requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner. Any reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionists by reason of the failure
of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
Requisitionists by the Company.
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() Procedure by which shareholders may put
forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders should send their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company's share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meeting of the Company.

() Shareholders put forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions under the Company's Byelaws or the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda regarding procedures for
Shareholders to put forward proposals af general meetings
other than a proposal of a person for election as director.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to
convene a special general meeting for any business specified
in such written requisition.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

(I) Constitutional documents
The Company confirmed that there has been no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum of associations and

the Bye-laws during FY2019.

() Communication with shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
fimely and effective communication with the shareholders
and the investors. The Board also recognizes that effective
communication with the investors is the key to establish
investor's confidence and to atftract new investors. Therefore,
the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of
fransparency to ensure that the investors and the shareholders
receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and fimely information
of the Group b\/ the pub|icofion of annual report, inferim
reports, announcements and circulars. The Company also
publishes all such documents on the Company's website at
www.kingstonemining.com. The Directors and the Board
committee members are available to answer questions at
annual general meeting of the Company.
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() Dividend policy

The Company adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends on 1 January 2019. It aims at enhancing
transparency of the Company and facilitating its shareholders
and the potential investors of the Company to make informed
investment decision relating to the Company. The Board will
review the dividend policy from time fo time.

While the Company intends to declare and pay dividends in
the future, the payment and the amount of any dividends will
depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

[a)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

[b)  the Group's expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

[c] retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(d)  the Group's liquidity position;

le) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(ff  any other factors that the board of directors of the
Company deems relevant.

Shareholders will be entitled to receive such dividends pro
rata according fo the amounts paid up or credited as paid
up on the shares. The declaration, payment, and amount of
dividends will be subject to the Board's discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of distributable profits as
permitied under the relevant laws. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to declare or distribute any
dividend in the amount set out in any of the p|ons or at all.
The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may
not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.

HE S AREERARA T

() BEHE

RABR2019F 1 A1H 3K B 8%
M—EARERR -ZREBKREERTT
RARARWMBRAE WEXRARREEER
EREERADFELANBENIRERE
EFZeSTHRIKREEREK -

BEARABENARREIRMRMALE -
HEMBRE 2N REEHEFLZER
EME BREFRR:

) AEEZERRBEBHFHRE:

b)) AEBBEHEEESFTE BEA
P B MR RIERET S

(c] ARBARAEEEKERBZRE
&) R A] A K (R A

(d] AXEEZRBE KR

e) BREERSERAEHAEEZE
BRUBERAMMKAEBEREEZH
fERERINERE &

()l ARAEFEGEASBB I EMEMD

BRREERRERD 2B RIARINES
REBULIIERBDEBRE -BREZEIK
ENREEHHEFEHERE -

B BAE A R AR BEE I FF AT T Al o R
i A HOR A o AR BB R E S e iR A
B SBE KK D IKAEMBRE X
RAEEZE KK D IREMKRE AR A
BERBDIKELE TR BIEEE A QA
ARAGEE RN ZBREKFZ2E
oL o

2019 F 3R 39



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR-HBKRE)

S

OVERVIEW

This report focuses on the disclosure of the Company’s performance
in respects of business integrity, green production, environmental
employee development,

protection, responsible production,

teamwork, production safety and health, and giving back to society.

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance ("ESG") Reporting Guide [as amended) issued
by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Stock Exchange”], as sef
out in Appendix 27 to the Llisting Rules of the Stock Exchange.
Identification and disclosure of information on the Company’s ESG
performance is for reference by stakeholders and shareholders.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report includes the business
operations of the Group in both Hong Kong and China during
December 2019

(the "Reporting Period”) relating to the overall performance, risks,

the reporting period for the year ended 31

strategies, measures and commitments of four aspects: quality of
working environment, environmental protection, operating practices
and community participation.

Through this ESG Report, the Group makes public and detailed
disclosure and elaboration of ESG and other non-financial matters
of the Company. The Group hopes that the report disclosures
will provide the opportunity to review our own ESG performance
and governance achievements, as well as provide a platform
for the public to understand our social responsibility values and
non-financial business achievements.

OVERALL APPROACHES AND POLICIES

The Group has been persisting in creating economic benefits,
promoting business development and performing its corporate
social responsibility to strike a balance between all parties,
while advocating corporate integrity in ifs pursuit of sustainable
development. For our sustainable development, we are committed
to:

®  Ensuring the compliance with laws, regulations and standards

applicable to our operatfions in an ethical and transparent
manner;

40  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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®*  Maintaining a longterm and sustainable relationship by
listening to the voice of the community fo understand the social
needs;

e  Establishing and maintaining open and transparent
communications with local communities and the public
on matters regarding safety, environment and community
relationship; and

e Profecting the infegrity, health, and benefits of stakeholders
on issues such as cooperation and respect for employees,
communities and environment, for the sake of being

recognized as a company with sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our
businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal to strengthen the
sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we put effort
in maintaining a close communication with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to government and regulafory authorities,
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, and the general
public. We take stakeholders’ expectations into consideration in
formulating our businesses and ESG strategies by utilising diversified
engagement methods and communication channels, shown as
below.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Zhangjioba Mine (“the Mine") located at Zhenjiang Village,
Xiangshui County, Jiangyou City of Sichuan Province, China, is
subject to various PRC environmental protfection laws and regulations
relating to a broad range of environmental protection matters, such
as land rehabilitation, water and soil preservation, noise control and
discharge of wastewater and pollutants. It is the Group's policy to
ensure the mining activities carried out by the authorised miner are
in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.
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Emissions

Air emissions

During the year of 2019, the mining operations are carried out
by the authorised miner. Management considers that the emissions
and wastes generated by the Group are insignificant. The major
air emissions during the year is mainly the use of motor vehicles
for staff to and from the mine site and the urban area. The Group
concerns about the use of fuel has adverse effect to the environment
and promotes carpooling wherever possible, use tele-conference
or video conference in place of face to face meetings. During the
process of combustion of fuels, other air pollutants, such as nitrogen
oxides ["NOx"), sulphur oxides ["SOx") and partficulate matters
["PM") are also produced.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Group has constantly updated itself with the local legislation
and standards for environmental protection and assessed whether
these legislations and standards are related to the business of the
Group and the Group's compliance status. The Group will continue
looking for ways to reduce CO, emissions and land contamination.

Emissions data summary
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Unit 2019
By 2019%
Air emissions
KRB
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx| kg 22
A8 (NOx) T
Sulphur Oxides (SOx| kg 0.1
WA (SOx) T
Respiratory suspended particles [“RSP) kg 1.6
ARABFR A ([ATIRABFHRF]) T
Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBHENR
Scope 1 - Fuel combustion Tonne 32.5
#o s — — R G Mg
Scope 2 - Electricity consumption Tonne 1.3
HE_—FHHERE i
Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions Tonne 16.5
s =—HEMmMEEER A
Total GHG emissions Tonne 50.3
BERBHERAE 7]
Intensity Tonne/ employee 1.8
BE W8T
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Hazardous and non-hazardous wastes production

No hazardous wastes are produced during the daily office
operation. The general office waste was mainly attributed to the
domestic wastes, the Group has formulated a guideline for waste
classification, reduction, reuse, recycling and disposal. Paper is one
of the major non-hazardous wastes generated in the offices. The
Group adopted the following practices to reduce paper waste at
source, so to reduce the production of non-hazardous waste:

®  Print only when needed and encourage duplex printing; and
®  Rewuse single-sided used papers, envelops, folders and carfon
in office.

During the Reporting Period, no violation of environmental laws
and regulafions regarding emission of exhaust air and greenhouse
gas, discharge into water and land, as well as hazardous and
non-hazardous wasfes that had significant impact on the Group
was found. The Group also confirmed that it was not subject to
governmental penalties due to any violation of aforesaid laws and
regulations in the course of business during the Reporting Period.

Use of resources

The Group utilizes resources effectively and responsibly to achieve
sustainable development. The Group encourages staff to adopt
environmentally responsible habits in their day to day acfivities,
and the Group constantly measure waste production, and seek to
promote use of recyclable materials.

The Group did not have problems in seeking appropriate water
resources. The existing supply of water resources could satisfy the
Croups needs in the aspects of volume, quality of water and the
guarantee of water supply facilities. In 2019, the Group carried
out measures of reduction in watfer consumption, recycling and
ufilization of industrial wasfe water.
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The following consumption data was recorded in the year ended

31 December 2019:

Electricity consumption 21,803 kWh
Electricity consumption intensity 778 kWh per employee
Paper consumption 276 kg

Paper consumption intensity 9.9 kg per sfaff
Environment and natural resources

As mining operators, the Group is in the business of exfracting
natural resources at the Zhangjiaba Mine. The Management of the
Group believes every practicable effort had been made to ensure
their collateral impact to the surrounding environment is kept to a
minimum. Right at the planning stage of the excavation the location
is set to be outside the urban planning area, and does not involve
designated areas such as nature reserves, scenic spots and cultural
relics {under preservation protection). Further, there are no farmlands
are located near the mining sites.

It is the firm beliefs of the Management that both the effective and
efficient use of energy and due care to the environment are vital for
sustainable development of the Group. Hence the Group closely
monitors and reviews the relevant data from time to time, minimizing
the negative effect to the environment and maximizing its business
development and operation at the same time.

SOCIAL

The Group has a comprehensive personnel management system
which is prepared (subject to geographical locations) in accordance
with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong
Kong), labour law of the People's Republic of China {FZE AR
HFAHELB)E) , Labour Contract Llaw of the People's Republic of
China (P EARKMBELE A EIE) and other applicable laws,
as well as industry practices. The system covers recruitment, rank
management, remuneration, training, confidentiality and other areas.
The Group ensures employees are clear about their own rights and
responsibihﬁes as The\/ will comp|y with the system and carry out
their work legally, in order to safeguard the interest of both parties.
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Employment

Although the Group has faced challenges from o downtrend
economic environment, the staff is willing to work with the Group
to tackle these unfavourable, adverse conditions. The Group has
established a policy to ensure that the rights of each staff member
are profected no matter the circumstances. The employment
contract of the Group specifies the terms including compensation
and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and other benefits and
welfare for our staff. Every staff member of the Group has signed
the employment contract with the Group. The promotion policies
of the Group are based on the performance of the relevant staff in
their position on annual basis.

Working hours, rest periods and leave paid

Five-day work arrangement is adopted to facilitate work-life balance.
In addition to all rest days and statutory holidays as specified in
local laws and regulations, employees are entitled to paid annual
leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves, marriage leaves and
compassionate leaves. Overtime work compensation is given to
staff for doing overtime work.

Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity

The Group actively promotes a diverse workplace where people
from diverse backgrounds are valued and respected. The Group
adopts equal employment opportunity policies and freats all the
employees equally. Employment, remuneration and promotion are
not under the influence of social identities, such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction
and marital status.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Management of the
Group was nof aware of any non-compliance with the relevant
employment law and regulation in both Hong Kong and PRC.
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Workforce Staff turnover

distribution rate (%)

AADE BIREKE%

Total number of staff BI#HAE 28 19.6
Gender 15

Male B4 20 114

Female peglia 8 37.5
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Health and Safety

The health and safety of employees have always been the group's
priority of productions. To manage the chances for workplace
incidents and to highlight the importance of heal care of their
employees, the Group had established various guidelines and
policies. These had been included in their Staff Handbook, which
is distributed to employees and enforced by their line management
and human resource department. Majority of their mining workers
are employed through third party agency, the Group had stipulated
these agencies to ensure that they place the similar, if not higher,
emphasis on the safety and health care of their employees.

Every worker is required to follow safety instructions and to train for
using the equipment and/or machinery properly. A safety moniforing
mechanism has been established and staff in each of production
stage has been assigned to monitor the compliance of safety rules.
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Occupational health and safety statistics 2019 2018
BERERZEZGEE 20194 20184
Number of lost days due to work injury EIEmERNITIERH Nil 2 Nil =
Number of work-related fatalities EITEBENET AK Nil 2 Nil =
Number of work injuries TiHE& R Nil 2 Nil =

The Management believes the Group has fully complied with law
and regulations regarding the health and safety requirements of the
business activities of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2019.

Development and Training

Management believes that keeping their employees up to date
with emerging trends and standards plays a fundamental role in
business growth. Therefore, the Group encourages employees to
continuously develop and improve their skill through training. The
Group understands that training could facilitate sustainable long-term
development, which is beneficial for both the Group and the
employees. The Group provides fraining for directors regarding the
Group's development and essential skills. The Group evaluates these
training programmes from time to time and reviews its effectiveness.
The Group encourages communication between management
and employees, the Group respects and cares about employees’
opinions and suggestions.
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Training details of director and staff for the year ended

31 December 2019

RiR - HERE]

G} S

HZE2010F012A3BEFEEERETIN
BRIEE

Percentage of

Average training No. of staff staff attended
hours attended attended training training
Fi52H g 2 EEl
1A R BETAHY ETEDE
By Gender t k]l
Male St 25 10 50%
Female egiid 2 S 37.5%
By Category R
Senior management =REREE 2 8 100%
Management EIRAB 20 1 14%
General staff LMET 19 4 31%
Labour Standards % T XA
The Group is committed to uphold the labour rights of staff and has AEEBEHR I RREE TN L BEN T E T

established a compliant mechanism for staff to report any labour
violations. The Management believes that the Group has complied
with relevant labour standards for the year ended 31 December
2019. It is always the group's policy to prohibit employment of staff
members under the legal working age of 18. During the year ended
31 December 2019, no labour disputes between the company and

its staff has been recorded.

The Group adhere to the laws and regulations prohibiting child
labour and forced labour, which mainly include the following:

o Employment Ordinance of HKSAR
e labor Llaw of the PRC (HZE A R MBI 4 &)%)

o labor Contract law of the PRC {(E AR KEFBL EHE [
=)

° Llaw of the PRC on Protection of Minors {F ZE A R FEFE &
XFE AREE)

e Regulations on Prohibiting Use of Child Labor (State Council
Order No.364)

FEESAREEZERERAF

EIEE%ﬁ&%%uDA%&%EEJE&%EM%E%UZ’I%
M- BEEBRAE HE2019F12A31HIEF
T AREBDESTHBS T EA -BEZEAX
EEAFIEFRISECEIRAEE —EIMN
KEOBK-BE2019F12A318BEFE K
ARHHEB T HABMETHEHULD -

AEFBETEILETRES S TR LR
Pl TEBEATRE:

o  FBENITHRRREIRIRD

e (REARHAMBLHE)

e (PFEARAMBEEHARE)

o (HEARKMBERKE AREZL)

s (ZHEUFEREIMRE) (BHKRk<H364
5% )

2019 3Rk 47



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Supply chain management

The purchasing department will target suppliers with reputation
in industry, and then select through quotation comparison and
negotiation. The Group also performs background check to their
potential miners according to effective procedures in order to
prevent fraud during the selection process.

In selecting contractor and equipment suppliers, the Group
takes into account various factors, such as |i) quolHy of services;
[ii) contracting costs; [(iii) safety management; and [iv] relevant
qualifications (if applicable). The Group requires contractors to
maintain a high stfandard of quality for the services provided, and
to comply with and have in place adequate occupational health
and safety and environmental protection procedures in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and safety requirements
imposed by the relevant PRC government authorities.

The mining activities are carried out by a reputable local qualified
service provider which comply with government regulation during
the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group does not foresee
its source of supplies to be a potential threat to the group operation.

Product Responsibility

The quality of products depends on the quality of the mine as the
Group has not further processed the beige marble blocks. The
Group facilitate customer on-site inspection and festing to ensure the
quality of the marble blocks are in line with their expectations. The
director believes that the Group has complied with relevant laws
and regulations related to the products of the Group.

During the reporting period of 2019, the Company did not receive
any complaints from customers about our products or services.
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Anti-Corruption

With regards to compliance with relevant laws and regulations in
different regions, the group maintains a code of business integrity. A
system with good moral integrity and the anti-corruption mechanism
is the cornerstone for the sustainable and healthy development of
the group. The Group also prohibits staff from receiving gifts of
excessive amount from customers and suppliers. The Group fakes a
zero-tolerance approach fo corruption and bribery and is committed
to acting professionally, fairly and with integrity in all our business
dealings. Any suspicious transactions would be notified and
reported to the relevant governing body by the responsible officer.

During the year ended 2019, no fraudulent practices has brought to
the Group's attention during the year.

Community Involvement

Contributing to society is a part of the Group's sustainable
development strategy. The Group is committed to providing career
opportunities to locals and promoting the development of the
community's economy. The Group fully understands and appreciates
the importance of and the need for community investment. One
remarkable aspect fully appreciated by the local community is that
most employees of the mine come from nearby villages. The Group
is committed fo developing more community investment opportunities
in its development plans. Through day-fo-day contact with community
officials and leaders, the Group explores and examines how the
Group can engage the community.
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REPURT OF THE DIRECTORS
EE5 RS

The Board hereby presents its report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the mining, processing and frading of the
marble stones and marble-related products. During the year, there
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set
out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statfements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are provided
in the Chairman Statement on pages ¢ and 8 and Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages @ to 19 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are sef out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 71 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not hold any major property development and/or
sale or for investment purposes as at 31 December 2019

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 34
fo the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis fo existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated
stafements of changes in equity on page 74 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders in accordance with the Company's
Bye-lows are RMB12.8 million (31 December 2018: RMB38.7

million).

BORROWINGS

Details of the loan from a director of the Company are sef out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years are set out on page 160 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Yonghui (appointed on @ April 2019)
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong

Mr. Zhang Wenijun

Mr. Zhang Mian (appointed on 4 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wang Yihua

Mr. Sheng Guoliang

Mr. Yang Ruimin
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RETIREMENT

In accordance with clause of the Company's Bye-laws, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall refire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to refirement at an
annual general meeting atf least once every three years. A circular
confaining the biographical details of the director candidates
eligible for re-election and the notice of annual general meefing will
be sent to the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Zhang Jianzhong,
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei, Mr. Sheng Guoliang and Ms. Wang Yihua
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Company considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS" INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this report, the Directors confirm that in relation
to their profile, no information is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Direcfors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years from the date of his/her
appointment. Such service contract can be determined by either
party serving at least one month’s notice prior fo the expiry of the
term.

None of the Directors (including any Director who may be proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting] has
entered info any service agreement with the Company which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at general meeting.
Other emoluments will be determined by the Remuneration
Committee and the Board with reference to the duties,
responsibilities, performance of the Direcfors and the results of the
Group. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular review
and monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the
levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 20 to 22 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends in
Hong Kong and China, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject
to the profitability of the Group, the Group may also distribute
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group. The Group has adopted a share option
scheme for its employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund refirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”] under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) organized by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC, under which the
Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of the payroll
of its employees to the Retirement Scheme. Save as disclosed
above, the Group has not operated any other refirement benefits
schemes for the Group's employees.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's five
largest customers accounted for Q4% [2018: 90%) of total sales
of the Group and the largest customers accounted for 31% (2018:
42%) of total sales of the Group. The five largest customers are all
medium-size enterprises.

During the year ended 31 December, the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 100% (2018: 100 %) of total purchases
of the Group and the largest supplier accounted for 84.5% (2018:
81.7%) of total purchases of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company's issued capital had any interest in the five largest
customers. To the best of knowledge of the Board, it is not aware of
any relationship among the major customers.

FEESAREEZERERAF

o AR P R

EEeREEEREABINAFHRE20
F228-

I BUR

AEENFHERRZERNRENKRERRE
FEERTENFSBBHE - LEFEHT N
BT -RIFAEENANEN AEETEM
HEBREMBIEAREBASEMIEL
BERNER - AEECAERERABERE

arEl-

SR AR A

REFERIERAESTEGL AEER
BRERFRHMELESRKEME S (8
BasEll) BEATAERZEBRE S
FMNBEAEE - AKET2ETEARE
BT BB P9 & 0 9 57 2 R SR IR EH B (R KA
2 it ARBEEAZBRREEFESNBER
DHARKFEELRHRK R EXAEESE
S AEBYESASERERIEAEM
BARAEFIETE

BE2010F12A31BLLFE FEETAE
FEREBEEHENO4% (20185 : 90%)
REAEFEAREBHEENI1% (20185
42%) - BEABFHURTEREMDE -

REBEZ12A3ALFE - AEELAHER
HASBEBEFEETEI00% (201845 : 100% ) &
RAMEBREARAEERKBERSL.5% (2018
F:81.7%)

BEEFARSFEMBEALEFMBRE (5
EEMA BAEARBDEITRASEAL)R
IAEFHHEBEEIAED REFSHMAM
ARBYTHNEEMNEIETFPHEMNBERK-

2019 &3k 53



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS E=H8%kS

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

, the interests and short positions of

Company or any of its associated corporations |within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock Exchange”] pursuant
fo provisions of Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors or chief executive
have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFOJ; (b)
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, fo be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were set out
below:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the
Company

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each held
FBEEREECOIETZEERHA

O o B
R2019F12A31H  EFR AR A A EM
HBEZE(EEREFRBERI(IEFR
HEGHRE)EXVE) 2k M HEKRDHE
BEFTEBREEFLBEGIEXVEE
TRESDBZBEXREBNEARBRER
BMAXZMABERRRA (TBRAT]) 2 #m Mok
R(ERRBIEFLRBEKRIBHREXES

&I TBRABREFEXAIEFEIES R
KB ¢ (o) RIBEZ R BRI F3521F B

AZIGOIF e 2 Bt 2 st ROXA + 3K (c)
REBLETHRAUMETAB 2 ETRTAES
ETEBHFRHNRE ?‘E'J(FT??@?E'JJ)/A%D
EARRA MRz S ORI

() REAFZEBERZHTA

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Name of Director ~ Capacity Direct interest  Deemed interest Total interest  of the Company
RN
BETRAE
B ) ERERE HRERAES BEDS B
Zheng Yonghui la) Interest of a controlled - 287,097,542 287,097,542 10.17%
corporation (Note)
(B
85 i (o) REEE#E S
[b) Beneficial owner 138,740,000 - 138,740,000 4.90%
b) BEx=EE A
138,740,000 287,997,542 426,737,542 15.07%
Note: B eE -

The 287,997,542 ordinary shares of the Company were directly owned by
Oasis Tycoon Investments Limited of which all interests are directly controlled by

Mr. Zheng Yonghui.
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(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the
Company
Details of the interests of the Directors in the share options

of the Company are separately disclosed under the section
headed “Share Options”.

(c) Short position
As at 31 December 2019,
executive nor their associates had any short positions in any

none of Directors or the chief

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period did the
Company or any of its holding company or subsidiaries participate
in any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executive
lincluding their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to
acquire any inferests and short positions of shares or underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation |within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 were rights
fo acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement fo enable the Directors to acquires such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors are aware that any
person (not being Directors or chief executive of the Company) has
an inferest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme on
24 January 2011 (the "
2011 Option Scheme is set out below:

2011 Option Scheme”). A summary of

Purpose

The purpose of 2011 Option Scheme is o give the eligible persons
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate them to optimize their future performance and efficiency
to the Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions,
fo aftract and refain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships
with such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or
success of the Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to
enable the Group to affract and retfain individuals with experience
and ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

Participants of the scheme

The Board may grant options to any person being a director
(including independent non-executive director), employee,
shareholder, supplier, customer, consultant, business partner and

adviser of any member of the Company and their associates.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2011 Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of the
Listing Date. Subject fo as provided in the 2011 Option Scheme,
the Company may seek approval from its shareholders in a
general meefing to refresh the 10% limit (not exceeding 10% of
the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of approval by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting] and grant
options beyond such 10% limit, but the total number of shares which
may be issued under 2011 Option Scheme and any other schemes
of the Group must not exceed 30% of the number of shares in issue

from time to time.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

No option may be granted to any one eligible person such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and fo be granfed to that person in any 12-month
period exceeds 1% of the number of shares in issue of the Company
from time to time. The Company may seek approval from its
shareholders in a general meeting to grant options fo the eligible
person exceeding 1% of the shares in issue of the Company in 12
month period up to and including the date of such further grant.

Period of the share to be taken up under an option
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance
by the eligible person concered for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer upon payment of HK$ 1.0 for each grant of options.

Minimum holding period of an option

Subject to the terms and conditions in the 2011 Option Scheme,
the Board may determine there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised and no performance
target which needs to be achieved by the grantee before the option
can be exercised.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be
such price as the Board may in ifs absolute discretion determine at
the time of grant of the relevant option but the subscription price
shall not be less than whichever is highest of (1) the nominal value
of the shares; (2) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and
(3) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days (as
defined in the listing Rules) immediately preceding the date of offer.
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Life of 2011 Option Scheme
The 2011 Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption.

Details of outstanding and movement of share options under 2011
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as

2011 iR IR RE ST I AV A R
201 1R AR ME ST RS R R 0 B AR E 1 O%F
BRI M R R

HZE2019F12A31REFE 20115 ERK
BB TRITENBEREREZHNHFFN

follows: S
As at
As at 1 January Gront during Lapsed during 31 December
Grantees Date of grant Exercise price 2019 the period the period 2019
R2019%
ARA R A TEE R2019F181R RERRH RERXX 12A31H
Director
=
Zhang Cuiwei 26 June 2014 note 4 HK$1.737 1,731,663 - - 1,731,663
REM 2014567268 Bitzx4 173787
12 January 2015 note 5 HK$1.649 2,424,329 - - 2,424 329
2015F1/4128 (HES) 1.6497% T
Zhang Mian 15 April 2019 note 8 HK$0.1172 - 28,320,827 - 28,320,827
wED 2019F4 7150 FizE8 011728
Other
Hity
Other employees 9 June 2014 note 3 HK$1.737 3,290,160 - - 3,290,160
HittgS 2014%6A98 FitzE3 173787
26 June 2014 note 4 HK$1.737 1,731,663 S S 1,731,663
2014567268 Bt x4 173787
30 December 2014 note 6 HK$1.634 4,848,657 - - 4,848,657
2014F12A8308 M6 1.634% 7T
12 January 2015 note 5 HK$1.649 2,424,329 - - 2,424 329
201517128 BN 1.6497% T
23 November 2017 note 7 HK$0.0972 47,200,000 - - 47,200,000
2017118238 M7 0.0972% 7T
15 April 2019 nofe 8 HK$0.1172 - 169,924,962 - 169,924,962
2019F4 7150 fizE8 0117287
Former Direcior and employee 4 November 2011 note 1,2 HK$10.87 1,350,697 - - 1,350,697
HMEFRES 2011E11R48 BisE1 -2 10.8747T
65,001,498 198,245,789 - 263,247,287
Vested at end of period 65,001,498 263,247 287
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Note:

1. On 24 May 2012, the Board passed a resolution that these options shall
confinue to be vested and be exercisable until the expiry of the option pericd
regardless of these grantees ceased to be a Director or an employee of the
Company.

2. The options were divided info three tranches exercisable from 4 November

2011, 4 November 2012 and 4 November 2013 to 3 November 2021.

3. The options were exercisable from 9 June 2014 to 8 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

4. The options were exercisable from 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

5. The options were exercisable from 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
[both dates inclusive).

6. The options were exercisable from 30 December 2014 to 18 December 2024

(both dates inclusive).

7. The options were exercisable from 23 November 2017 to 22 November 2027

[both dates inclusive).

8. The options were exercisable from 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029 (both dates

inclusive).

9. The Company recorded the fair value of these share opfions as staff cost in the
income statement. The Company will record the nominal value of the shares
which is HK$0.01 per share issued pursuant to the exercise price of the share
options as additional share capital and the Company will record the excess of
the exercise price of the share options over nominal value of the shares in its
share premium account. Any share options which has lapsed or been cancelled

will be deducted from the balance of the share options.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts with Directors, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered or

existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance
in relation fo the business of the Group, to which the Company,
its holding companies, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2019

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group's business that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up fo and
including the date of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At any time during the year ended 31 December 2019, there were
no connected transactions or confinuing connected transactions

14A of the Llisting

Rules, which are required to comply with any of the reporting,

of the Company as defined under Chapter

announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Llisting Rules. None of the related party transactions
constituted a connected transaction or continuing connected
fransaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the directors. Having made specific
enquiry fo all the Direcfors, they confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company, the Directors, managing Direcfors, alternate Directors,
auditors, secretary and other officers, for the time being, acting
in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or susfain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the exertion of their duty.

The permitted indemnity provision is currently in force for the benefit
of the Directors as defined and required by Section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance and has been in force throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Company has not arranged for
appropriafe insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect fo legal actions against its Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The reasons for this decision is
elaborated on page 23 of the corporate governance report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are sef
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries or holding
company or subsidiary of the holding company has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the Share
Option Scheme, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreements that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
or [ii] require the Company fo enter info any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares during the year ended
31 December 2019 or had subsisted at the end of year ended
31 December 2019.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The shares of the Company were listed on 18 March 2011 on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Based on publicly available
information and fo the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of

this report of directors under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Elite Partners
CPA limited who refire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which consists of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group's
consolidated financial stafements for the year ended 31 December
2019, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed with auditors in relation fo the infernal
control and financial reporting matters of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Zheng Yonghui

Executive Director

1T May, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
1R E5HEh¥RS

elite
- partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Members of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continved in Bermuda with

limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages /1 to 159, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the Infernational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ["HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ["HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

BREETER

REZMANEXZHE BREFETESRM
B HE200F12A3BEFERATH
BEFREZENFTHE-BZMEFFBERS
MBEBREMBRUTERERERB L FER
MAERUEEREFERER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key Audit Matter
HEETSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHWEANOEEZEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets

ME BERRE ERAREEUAREVEENREG

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB175,184,000,
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB1,219,000
and a mining right classified as an infangible asset of
approximately RMB4 1,744,000 relating to the Group's
cash-generating unit regarding sale of marble and
marble-related products (the “CGU"). For the year ended
31 December 2019, no impairment loss had been
recognised on the Group's property, plant and equipment
and intangible asset respectively. Details are set out in
note 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
R2019F12A310 EBEXENYE BERRK
HWRARME75184,000 ERBEEENRARKE
1,219,000 MES R RBELEENRKBROR/AR
%41,744,00070 REEE SEEEMEERNEL
MARBAHEBEERNReELSEM ([ReEAEM])
BEA-BE2019F12A31RLFE Y& E5E
W% BERRKEBEANREREED BIFERRMERRE -
BREFBHEN GRS M BRRMEI7R18 -

The Group had engaged an independent valuer to
assist the management of the Company in estimating
the recoverable amount of the CGU which requires
significant judgement to be made by the management of
the Company.

ESEEZE - EBUGLEMBE EARNEREY
Al BRAAEEEFLEARHBNRSELEMNA
Yo Bl & B8 4E H fd 5 o
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Our procedures in relation to the management's
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible asset included the following:
BMEABEEEUYE BELRBARELEED
MEFEOREFEEATRIE:

- We obtained cash flow forecasts prepared by
the management of the Company and assessed
the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions used for the preparation of the
forecasts (e.g. estimated reserves of mineral, sales
volume, unit selling price, estimated expenses and
discount rate efc.).

- HBMEESH EQAREREREMNBRSRER
A WEREAERTER (DI RERFE HE
B HEBEE GAXENEXRFZ)MAIER
BRRH SR -

- We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of an independent valuer and the method
used for estimating the recoverable amount of the
CGU.

- BT EBLGERAS 20 RFE MU
NGt ReEASMIRIKRESEMANG X
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Key Audit Matter
HEETSEE

We had identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment, rightof-use assets and infangible
assefs relating to the CGU as a key audit matter
because significant management judgement was used in
determining key assumptions.

BACHERAVE BELRB CAREENNERS
EXBUAHENBETLEENRENGER —BBERE
FH REAREERENGIEHARBRSAELEEHEG -

Impairment assessment of the trade receivables

B 7 W OR KR E B

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately RMB59 million net of
impairment.

R20190F12A31H  AEBEZFERBKRENASARE
59,000,0007T (kR RME)

HE S AREERARA T

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNEANANERZEE

- We discussed with the independent valuer
the appropriateness of the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating the recoverable
amount of the CGU and performed certain
procedures fo assess data and assumptions used by
the management and the valuer in estimating the
recoverable amount.

- BMERBUAEMIwGEARESEEEMAIK
CEBEAINTERBRNVEE L XEHRTT
ETRFAGEERRERMEEMN G ATRE S E
Ry PT R B B4R B R R

- We checked the mathematical accuracy of
calculation of the recoverable amount of the CGU.

- BMERERSELABMAIWESETETEN
HEAERE o

Our procedures in relation to management's impairment
assessment of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2019 included:
HMAEBR20I19FI2AIHEBREYE FEIWRIE
FrEd BN EF2ENTSIE:

- We understood and evaluated the key controls that
the Group has implemented to manage and monitor
its credit risk, and validated the control effectiveness
on a sample basis;

- THRIFE EEEREENMEZEHEEERRM
B e A 8 4 420 I 45 b X R AR RE SRR BRI 0 A A

- We checked, on a sample basis, the ageing
profile of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2019 to the underlying financial records and post
year-end setilements to bank receipts;

- HMBERENR20190F12A31R EEM KRR
BIRWHBNREBREFERRNRITHRS
mE W
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Key Audit Matter
BEETSEE

Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency
of provision for impairment based on information
including credit profile of different customers, ageing
of the trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent setflement status, expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.
%@ﬁfﬂ_ﬂg}fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ B 5 W RIE 8 BRiR

THERSE RELERR BESHRRERES
zﬁziﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁa%}g MIBEXIHRERESENYTES
JRE W5 5 TR ) BT 1 KO ME B e B 3T R M E 1T R AT
H-BEETEEARHEFERANAEEGEMRIBE
NEKTZENRE ML ER AEFHREN G TEHE
&R

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables under the expected credit
loss model involved the use of significant management
judgements and estimate.
BAPEINUEBDARTEREEERERLTESE
WOk IE 2 BB RT (48 B B 1R JE P VR & R I B B ik AT
HfE A o

We had identified impairment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because significant judgements had
fo be made for the assessment of impairment under the
expected credit loss model.
RME®RAEZIERWABZRER —BHEREAFTE
FRERBELHERAGAFEEREEBEERL T2
AR
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHNEANMEEZEE

We inquired of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as at
year end and corroborated explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
understood on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checked
historical and subsequent seftlement records of and
other correspondence with the customers; and
MEREERNAENFHEBCANNTERESD
JEUCRIAEIRR WA X B BB EEEREN®E
IRBERHTHTHRETPNFEEBRE &
EHEEPHESE MNHRERERSEREMBH X

We assessed the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology, examined
the key data inputs on a sample basis fo assess
their accuracy and complefeness, and challenged
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.
AEEREEBEEEN AR AE MK
EFTERMABBATHERSERL TE I %‘J
ANETRAEEEERNGREL LATEEER
B R AR he ¢ o
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Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is moferio”y inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary fo enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no redlistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

HE S AREERARA T
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our obijectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely fo you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
fo any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriafe fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

68  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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®  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisfs
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to confinue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group fo cease to confinue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in o manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought fo bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

HE S AREERARA T

s HEEZRAURERLZREMRMNEEZE
MIREMELER -REMFSHNEFE
EREEEFEEEHABEREBN
EXTHEE MUkl EXEFE
REMBENBREARE -WERMARBR
FEEATHESE HMTEEEETA

BETFRFBIESE AV B REANIEE

EMBE-HEBREEENT R AR

MALAFERBERNEARE -

BPNEREENBERERSE BB

IEFESEERH R - Rl - RREFMHF=H

BRAREY BEEEITEEEFEL

A2 o

=

s FEHKAMBBR(EREEEMN)WE
BIR RBNAD URKESFB®RE
ERCARNMRRBERS REE-

yANVIV

2es

e i EXEAZERBAEXRBEINNG
ENESRRBEENENRE UK
EHMBHRERERER -RMEARRSE.
EBMHT EKEMNESITE-RM
ARBEMANEFERAELZHNEE-

BP9 (R B1E) B TN BREMNS
M EEHBEERMAENONEBE
HH(RERNBERNEARK) BBHER
TR

BHTRMBFZESELRA BRRMAD
BTEBBUIMMNEBERER UNME
REERRURTERMBILENBEERME

MMEEAREBREERE (ER) ERE
EITERE -

BHMBBEBRFZESER BEPLER
HEGAWBHRRBT L ENRERZE R
HAREFFR-RMSEEAMRETHE
MEBELEBE BRIFERIOERTAFHEN
FHRECAHABE XESRFROBERT
ERAEEHAERMBRETEAXETEME
KOBERRBEBEEELEN IR
BT EELEBERNTERSTBEBEZE
Ig °

2019 F 3R 69



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT 1% 7 &5 518 R 5

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent B EWBUY BB SHETBEEEEEGE
auditor’s report is Siu Jimmy with practising certificate number: A BEER - EHEIEBTIFE AP05898 °
PO5898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited BT EESMEBMERLT
Certified Public Accountants HE A

Hong Kong, 11 May 2020 FE - 2020FE5811H

10/F 8 Observatory Road, &5

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon BE

Hong Kong AX BE8HR1012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FolEaNEMEANSE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

019F12A31B IEFE

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR®TR AREET T
REVENUE (' ON 7 65,689 67,719
Cost of sales HE KA (61,260) (63,170)
Gross profit ER 4,429 4,549
Other income and gains E b Ug A R U 2= 8 767 14,540
(Loss)/gain on deregistration,/ HUETM, HERBE AR
disposal of a subsidiary (B#E) s (1,117) 566
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAS (2,458) (1,210
Impairment loss recognised on frade FE 5 e WK IR FE R
receivables BIEEE 9 (28,200) (8,307)
Administrative expenses THRAX (41,755) (29,393)
Finance costs B 7% B 7R 10 (171) (15)
LOSS BEFORE TAX RREEATES 1B 11 (68,505) (19,270)
Income tax FR1GH 13 - =
LOSS FOR THE YEAR KRABHEEAEREERFA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (68,505) (19,270)
Other comprehensive income: Hittb2EWA :
ltems that may be reclassified HETREEHRIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BENER:
Exchange differences on translation of — FERE G I E R E LK
foreign operations EHER 3,847 10,633
LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE ZHKATHEEAEBEFEEER
INCOME FOR THE YEAR HRZEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (64,658) (8,637
LOSS PER SHARE (RMB cents) BREE (ARYED) 15
- Basic and diluted —ERK#E (2.4) (0.7)

FEESAREEZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

el BiRRE

As at 31 December 2019 201941283 1H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN NN 17 178,732 189,365
Intangible assets B EAE 18 41,744 43,732
Prepaid land lease payments TN L EERIA 19 = 1,253
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 3,878 -
Prepayment AR 25(a) 51,330 51,642
275,684 285,992
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories EE 23 363 369
Trade receivables 5l FIE 24 59,368 71,684
Prepayments, deposits and ERARE e &
other receivables H A U IR 25(b) 3,774 3,941
Cash and cash equivalents HehBL2EEY 26 49,022 65,058
112,527 41,052
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables B 5 ENFIA 27 558 1,814
Obligation under finance lease BhE TR E A 28 - 233
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 1,429 -
Other payables and accruals HEhEA AR ERTE A 30 18,167 18,433
Amounts due fo directors JENEEHIE 31 5,586 831
Provision for litigation REA B 32 10,601 1,200
36,341 22,511
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEZFE 76,186 18,541
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERARBARS
LIABILITIES 351,870 404,533

72 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #RE{IFSARIRZE

As at 31 December 2019 }R2019F12831H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 1,041 -
Provision for rehabilitation EEREE 33 2,697 2,697
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEBE 22 608 608
4,346 3,305
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 347,524 401,228
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRHE
Equity attributable to owners of KAREAAEGESR
the Company
Share capital fi& A 34 24,435 24,435
Reserves Gk 35 323,089 376,793
TOTAL EQUITY S 347,524 401,228

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 159 were E71ZE159EMERE M HE S K2020F5A
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  1TBEZEFSHAERBEENE YEHTIHES

11 May 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: KEREZF:
Zhang Cuiwei Wang Yihua
RER TEE
Director Director
5= 5=
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CUNSULIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Foreign
currency

Issued Share  Contributed ~ Share opfion translation Retained

capital  premium* reserve” reserve* reserve™ profits  Tofal equity
ARAE

BRORA  ROEE* HARE BRERE* RE*  REE7A aER
RMB'0O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O0O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR
[Note 35] (Note 36)
(Hr3E35)  (MEE36)

At T January 2018 ®2018F1A18 24,435 221,144 14,480 25,115 (12,860] 137,551 409,865
Loss for the year FERE = = = S S [19,270) 119,270
Exchange difference on translation of overseas operations RREEINEBELNERZE - - - - 10,633 - 10,633
Total comprehensive loss rHFEAE - - - - 10,633 119,270 8,637)
At 31 December 2018 #2018%12A31R 24,435 221,144 14,480 25,115 (2,227) 118,281 401,228
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (68,505)  (68,505)
Exchange difference on translation of overseas operations ARESIEBEANERZR - = = = 3,847 = 3,847
Totol comprehensive loss *HAFEER - - - - 3,847 (68,505)  (64,658)
Grant of share opfions Rt R E - - - 10,954 - = 10,954
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12R318 24,435 221,144 14,480 36,069 1,620 49,776 347,524
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the consolidated ~— * ZERERACEGEAVBHARRNGAHE-

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HelREREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #2201

OF12A3HIEFE

2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Loss before tax bR 4 A ES 18 (68,505) (19,270)
Adjustments for: HATRBEELFE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME WEMREEITE 12,074 13,142
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREENE 1,392 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH 1,988 =
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FA R 4 3 78 & FRIA 85 = 34
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREREZ
plant and equipment (W) /18 (414) 1,848
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables FLE B YR IR RE R
WEEE 28,200 8,307
Impairment loss recognised on other receivables S EL fth 18 L R IE BE R
BB 1B 34 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE KB A Rz W - (5606)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary BUHZMM B AR 2 BE 1,117 =
Exchange gain B 5 W & (10) =
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁzuﬂﬁ? (10) =
Provision for litigation A A 9,401 =
Interest expenses MERX 171 15
Interest income FLBURA 1 (1)
Share-based payments expenses AR D R AR 2 MR FE X 10,954 =
Reversal of provision for litigation SFEAREE R T = (14,500
Operating cash flows before movements LEEREYHIZ
in working capital KERERE (3,609) (10,991)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other BNRE -EE R
receivables H b & YR IE R 139 11,895
Decrease in inventories FERD o) 2,684
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e Uk FRIE 1S 0 (14,927) (45,456)
Decrease in trade payables B 5 RN RIER D (1,256) (100)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables H A [ 5 R IR J2
and accruals FEETE R (R4, 18 m (426) 5,689
Payment for litigation nﬁ*’\#\ﬁ = (21,800
Net cash used in operating activities RETEBFMARESFE (20,073) (58,085)

FEESAREEZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS G IREMSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

2019 2018
20194 2018%
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE BB MRE (2,622) (2,812)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEYME BEEREZ
plant and equipment PSR 487 339
Purchases of rightof-use assefs BEERAEEE (320) =
Proceed on deregistration of a subsidiary HR 8 51 11 PR B8 2 Rl 2
P15 50H (4) -
Interest received 2 WA E 1 1
Proceed on disposal of a subsidiary HE M B R RIS OR = 599
Prepayment for purchase of property, BEWE BELERBZ
plant and equipment Fa I RIA - (51,642)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEMARSFE (2,458) (53,515)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Repayments of lease liabilities HEAREN (1,324) =
Repayments of obligation under finance lease BEHEAEENR (233) (3906)
Interest paid ERFE (2) (15)
Advance from a director EEIR 4,665 -
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities METEHMASES (FA)
R&FH 3,106 (411)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBEeEEYWF
CASH EQUIVALENTS L (19,425) (112,011)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FNRERREFEY
the year 65,058 168,613
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEH s TE 3,389 8,456
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREECRAELEZEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 49,022 65,058
Represented by 235
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 49,022 65,058
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 ¥R 2R P 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31H IEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”)
are principally engaged in the production and sale of marble
and marble related products, mainly in China. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands under
the name of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited on
29 March 2010 and changed its domicile to Bermuda with
limited liability on 10 August 2016. The registered office
address of the Company is Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Homilton HM12, Bermuda. The principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong is located at Unit 14, 8/F,
Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 March
2011.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated, which is also the
functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

VB FHI 5 T B 8 T 1B i S 5 ol
e ) (1 s B 2 e o Y U )

7S £F B 3 1 A R HY BT B B B B
HEERREFT AR
AEBNAFEEHRRMANNLTBEE S
ZARER([BREHENEESR])

("IASB") for the first time in the current year:

IFRS 16

IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS @

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IFRSs

Leases

Uncerfainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Seftlement

Long-ferm Inferests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements fo IFRSs
20152017 Cycle

B RO R T B BRI M RS R R B AT A
AR EREENE HE
16%%
BRMHRERER MSHEEZTHEE
BE-REF23R i3
BB M s 2R ﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁf KR Al
O Z BRI A R
B & SR F 195 ﬁi‘lf ] BER A
PACTIEN &

B e ERFE28% RBEARRSZED
PACHEN EORHES
BRMEREER 2 201552201748
CHEN BB BRE

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

78  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 55 ¥R 2% Bfi 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continved)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application
on IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. IFRS 16 superseded IAS 17 leases (“IAS 17"), and the
related interpretations.

Transition and summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 16

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply IFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a lease and not apply this standard
fo confracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contfracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in IFRS 16 in

assessing whether a confract contains a lease.

FEESAREEZERERAF

2.

VB FH 5 T S 8 T 1B B S 5 i ol
He Q) (11 B B 2 e o B R ) o

N F BB A A R #T T BB B AR
WREZEBREITA @)

ERERMERELEREIGREEHSH
BENEERES
AEBRAFEEAEAEBRTBERS
ﬁﬁ']%]é%ﬁ"lwﬁﬁﬁxiﬁiﬁﬁﬂ 165%
BRARBEEESENEI7HHE ([BHE
@§+ZEE|J%]7FJEJ )RR RE -

I ME S BB 31 75 3 & 2R 1 05 M E 4
ZBERZEGE
HEZES
AEECDEREREERS A BERY
i‘%%&i‘iﬁﬂ 1 657 & F 7 55 A FE R B BR
/H'J 17ERBERYBERERER
BEe-REFISECLRHRETEREMA
SR AMEEZAK AL E K% ER
ERREMERBINSBEHEZAM -
Rt - AEEREEHFERNFER
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FR2019F 1 AT R K Z & ] L A& AT
ZAENME AKEREERMBERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. B 75T Be A% A8 5T okl i b 785 ik £
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING e A (11 W B 5 e 7 e I ] ) com)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Confinued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are 7S 5 258 I A R Y 3 AT BB B AR

mandatorily effective for the current year HEEAREFT A (o)

(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application FERERTEREEREIGREEH ST

on IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) HRNFEREH (#)

Transition and summary of effects arising from initial P25 JE F BB B 75 3 & 2B RI 2 1 O35F T E 4

application of IFRS 16 (Continved) ZEERZEGE (#)

As a lessee TERETEA

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional REBER2019F1H 1A EBERBEK

lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the B mELERE éﬁﬁ C8(b)(ii] 38K % 18

related lease liabilities by applying IFRS 16.C8(bllii) transition. EREREEAGB 2 ERRAFEINEE

Any difference af the date of initial application is recognised BELEREEE-RVFXERBHZ

in the opening retained profits and comparative information EREZBRBUVRBENPER BEX

has not been restated. BEILRER -

When applying the modified retrospective approach under RBERERBERTEREENE O

IFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following practical ZRETEBWH AR REEBREXE

expedients to leases previously classified as operating leases EaNERAcEERN REHNEEEE

under IAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to H—r WTEBREREFEZEARERBIER

the respective lease contracts: REHEAFI /RO ERKEHEZH

=

relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous FERBIR T ERIEI7HRE
by applying IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities REBBERIAEEEARERTN
and Contingent Assefs as an alternafive of impairment BRAE AGHERTREE:
review; and 54

ii. elected not to recognise rightof-use assets and lease i, FZETHHERAROFERBH2ME
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12 RRERNEHEEREREEER
months of the date of initial application; HEBME:

On fransition, the Group has made the following adjusiments REBER  AEEC N ERERME®R

upon application of IFRS 16 HEEAFIORBIELATHE:

The Group recognised lease liabilities of approximately R2019F 1 AR AEEBROAR

RMB1,620,000 and right-of-use assets of approximately ¥1,620000 M HEEBBRANARK

RMB2,873,000 at 1 January 2019 2,873,000 AEEE °

80  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 55 ¥R 2% Bfi 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. B8 F 7 5T B S48 5T Rl e B s i 4%
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING e F) (T 1o e B 5 e o e S L) o)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Confinued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are 7S5 5 I A R Y 3 AT BB B AR
mandatorily effective for the current year BREERIET A ()
(Continued)
Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application FERBEREEREERNEIGREEH ST
on IFRS 16 Leases (Continved) BENTERED (5)
Transition and summary of effects arising from initial )25 A B B B 75 4 & 2E RI B 1 695 1T 2 4
application of IFRS 16 (Continued) ZEERZEE (F)
As a lessee [Continved) EREMA (&)
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously REREADERKLEHEENEENE
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied EaER AKEECEAROFEAR
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities HEAEEERBRNEEBEN X -ME
at the dafe of initial application. The lessee’s incremental REEBAEEEENKRB4.7% -
borrowing rate applied is 4.7%.
RMB'000
ARBTT
Operating lease commitments disclosed at M2018F 12 A3 B BRI & & FIE
31 December 2018 2,060
less: Recognition exemption — shortterm leases B ERRE-CHEE (393)
1,667
lease liabilities discounted at relevant HEBEREBEESEENZTETUR
incremental borrowing rates (47)
lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 R2019F1BITHMWHEEEE 1,620
Analysed as DR
Current mED 1,438
Non-current FERY 182
1,620

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

2.

82

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continved)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application
on IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Transition and summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 16 (Continved)

As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of rightof-use assets as at 1 January
2019 comprises the following:

VB FHI 5 T B 8 T 1B i S 5 ol
AR (11 B B 2 e i M 1 ) o)

I 6F B A A R0 T RT B R B AR
REZEBREFTAR @)

ERERMEREERNEIGREER S
BERNZEREE (@)

Y] fEFG BB 31 75 38 & 2RI % 1 5% T 4
ZBERZELE (&)

TERAMEA (#)

R2019F 1A HERBEEEMNKREE
BRETIRE:

Note RMB'000
B & ARETT
Rightof-use assets relating to operating K FE FA B BR B 7% #R 5 A2 RI 5 1 05 18 AR A
leases recognised upon application HREHERMNEREEE
of IFRS 16 1,620
Reclassified from prepaid land lease BB THHAERIBEH 5
payments (a) 1,253
2,873
By class gl
Leasehold lands HE 1 1,253
leased properties HEME 1,620
2,873

Notes:

(a) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the People’s Republic of China
[the "PRC") were classified as prepaid land lease payments as at
31 December 2018. Upon application of IFRS 16, the prepaid land
lease payments amounting to approximately RMB1,253,000 were

reclassified to right-of-use assets.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continved)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application
on IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Transition and summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 16 (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2019. line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

VB FH 5 T S 8 T 1B B S 5 i ol
AR (11 BB 2 e o M 1 ) o)

N F BB A A R #T T BB B AR
WREZEBREITA @)

FEREBTERESEAFIREEH S
BENTEREE (&)

PI 2 fE PG BB 31 75 3 & 2RI 1 05 M E 4
ZBRRZEGE (&)

R2019F1ATH  HiEE P BR MK F
ERANSHEETTOTHARE -RXE
FEMBEBRRETIR

Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts
reported at under IFRS 16
31 December at 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
M2019%
1RA1RH
KLATR20185 BEER
12A31RHEM E16HFEMN
fREE AR SREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARBETT AR®ETT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Prepaid land lease payments R L3 E KA
Rightof-use assets FREEE
Current liabilities REBEE

Lease liabilities HEAR
Non-current liabilities ¥ REBEE

Lease liabilities HEAE

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities under
indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019, movements in
working capital have been computed based on opening statement of

financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.

FEESAREEZERERAF

1,253 (1,253 =
= 2,873 2,873
= 1,438 1,438
= 182 182

Mia: ABmERBEEFENEE2019F12A31R
LTFEENREEHMSRERNE £EESHE
IR ERBEHNR2019F1 A1 B BHRRAKRE
BBt E -
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2.

84

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Confinved)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments fo IFRSs and on inferpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 3

Insurance Contracts!
Definition of Business?

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

VB FHI 5 T B 8 T 1B i S 5 ol
Q) (T 1 B B 2 e o B R ) o)

B 18 A {8 [e R 4 Rz # 8] R A4S
&1 B PR B 3 R o 22
7% 5% 8 3 4% 42 2 08 A OA T B AR 9 18 14 R
A B 5 5T B B B %5 4R 4 2 B R B R B
BREEMBTARRRE:

EREMBERELERNE 7R REeL
BRMERELERFIR L EHIER’
EHES

ERMERELERFIORKL RETREKE

and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®
Definition of Material*

BIfR &t RIS 285

NERAEDR

IAS 8
Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform#

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or affer 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a dafte to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in

lts consequential amendments the

IFRS Standards, will be effects for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company consider that the application
of all new and amendments to IFRSs and IASs is unlikely to
have a material impact on the Group's financial position and
performance as well as disclosure in foreseeable future.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

fEETA XEZHER
BEIN
BEREestERF IR BESBERAE
EHEN S FEENHS
ERetERFIRLEER FEAZER
ST ERIFESTK 2 BRI A
BIFREI SRR FOS - MIHEEE

REETEFEIOR K
B B 75 S o5 2R RI 55 758
PACHEN

! B202141 B HRZ & F16 2 FE HHEER

2 MUEE R HANR2020F 1 A1 B2 &Mz E
BEFEHERRE AR ZROEBEHREE
B A 2

¢ BN TEEZASMAZRRBZERAMER

4 B202041 B 1 AR 2 & Fth 2 F 2 B ER

: B202241 B HRZ & F16 2 F 2 HEER

B bl 37 AT B BR B 7% 3R & 2E Bl Ko B B B
BmE ERAERT AL 201 8B M T &
BATMBEREZHSER - REKREF]
KU BRELEN 2B SERESNZE
IR 20201 AT HS 2 B RE
FEBMMBER-

ARREERRERE ] REEFT
BIBR % 5 R R BIBR & 5 RN
SEPBIRRREE AR ER] B RS
BEEREAZENAREER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 55 ¥R 2% Bfi 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EREHIEURMEE

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation RENEGEAMBRRAEANTIES
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. BRI T -BREERAIN FTEZ
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years SIMNFEEHNERERZEFRR -

presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation fim BB %=

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared FEMBRRDEERE & ERIESE
in accordance with IFRSs, which include all applicable g(ERetERBEE] ) BB 2R
individual International Financial Reporting Standards, BB mEEB(BEMEEABMER
International Accounting Standards (“IAS") and inferpretations BREF TSRS R BB E &R ([
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board SEEA]DRZEB)UAREE R IEH
["IASB"), and applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong MEBERREREMNEEBARIFER
Kong Companies Ordinances and applicable disclosure AR (BRI EHFEMRA(TET
requirements of the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities RADOBERRERERE -

(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on WTIXHAESREBL K6 MBR
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, KON EMRERRUNFELRNAEEFE -
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the BEEXREABEERRBEMERBAE
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. REHRRE:.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ARAERRAEERTH2RENRAF
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between RHPHERET UMK BERBEAX
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of NHER MTAwmZEKEEFEAE
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using it ER EZEEBRA Mt -REEE
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value EXEENAAER AEEGERET
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the L2EENAEEPHEEXEBETE
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants KAMZEENEERRBNRH ZFR
would take those characteristics into account when pricing EHMBHREFPIEAER I EBERALED
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for RAELRILEEET HERERMBE R
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated FEREAUF2RUARMDAERNNTRER
financial statements is defermined on such a basis, except for NARMDBERONRRZ S  BERTHK
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope BREZBFI65 (B2019F1A1HRE)
of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are BB e EAE75 (R ERBER
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 (since 1 January BHRELEREIORZANBBEANEE
2019) or IAS 17 (before application of IFRS 16), and RGUNEERE FEALERALUEL
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are FRAAENGE (BB GERZE2R
not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories GEPMOZR FEIBRE ST ELNE
or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assefs. IGHEERETHNEREME)RIN
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3.

86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Confinved)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e level 1 inpufs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
The principal accounting policies are sef out below.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entfities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability fo affect those refurns through its
power over the enfity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control

is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Consolidation (Continved)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
aftributed to the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is also atfributed to the owners of the
Company.

Intra-group fransactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
fransaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
fransferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and |ii) the
carrying amount of the assefs, and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Foreign currency translation

{a)  Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the enfity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which
is the functional currency of the principal operating
subsidiaries of the Group.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars.

(b}  Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
franslated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. HEREHEBUORMEIE @
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continved) INEEEE R ()
(c)  Translation on consolidation [c) #HEFRBELRE

The results and financial position of all the Group AEEBETHEERNNREERK S

entities that have a functional currency different from the RKAFEREEFI—HE HXE

Company's presentation currency are franslated into the MPBARRAG LA T T ERE RN

Company's presentation currency as follows: NARIZEMEY:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial i) SHBRIREZINNEER
position presented are franslated at the closing rate BE HERRZVBMRRAEXE
at the date of that statement of financial position; EHRMWMERHBE

(i)  Income and expenses are franslated at average (i) WARFAX HERRBFHEX
exchange rates (unless this average is nof a BmE (EEkFHEXRKRES
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect BRI RSB 2 XK
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in MEFTFE AERBXZAZ
which case income and expenses are translated at EXxHmERERARAX)
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and )52

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised (iii) ﬁﬁﬁ[ﬁb%—;ﬁ\ HRNEiRE
in the foreign currency franslation reserve. fF% 85 O BE R

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from EREGaRER TEREIE
the franslation of the net investment in foreign entities BUREFENBEMEENEL
and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign ER ORI EHLERBRNRER -
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation EHEBIEBR HFEHNER
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in Hﬁﬁ/\i‘ﬁ EERAERRLEREN
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on — &

disposal.

Property, plant and equipment M- BERRE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in BRAEZETRN M- -BE RZHEZKAE
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and ﬁ%?ﬁﬁ%&{iﬁﬁﬁﬁ BB - E -
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant BERSEEENKNABEHEBEEER
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly HEEEZEBGEERARME AERTER
aftributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition BREMEEEGERAR-

and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount Higp NENBEIEE AR 2 RRLER
or recognised as a separate assef, as appropriate, only when mAAREBERARNEE MEB ZKA
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with RErm St ER M AL EREESN B
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can VHERREE(WMER) - FIAEEMEE
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are RREEBR REAHEEESZANER -

recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 55 ¥R 2% Bfi 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. BHEAREHFEUORMEE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continved)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than mining infrasfructure,
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account
of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are

as follows:

Buildings 10 - 20 vears
Plant and machinery 515 years
Office equipment 5 vyears

Lleasehold improvement Over the lease term

Motor vehicles 4 - 10 years

Depreciation of mining infrastructure is calculated using the
Units of Production ("UOP") method to write off the cost of the
assets.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents items of property, plant
and equipment under construction, which is sfated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use. Depreciation of these assefs, on the same
basis as other property, plant and equipment, commences
when the assets are ready for their infended use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3.

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Stripping costs

Stripping costs incurred during the production phase are
generally considered to create two benefits, being either the
production of inventory or improved access to the ore fo be
mined in the future. Where the benefits are realised in the form
of inventory produced in the period, the production stripping
costs are accounted for as part of the cost of producing those
inventories.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of improved access
to ore fo be mined in the future, the costs are recognised as
a stripping activity asset and is accounted for as an addition
fo, or an enhancement of, the ‘Mining Infrastructure’ in the
statement of financial position if the following criteria are met:

[a) it is probable that the future economic benefit (improved
access to the ore body) associated with the stripping
activity will flow to the entfity;

(b)  the entity can identify the component of the ore body for
which access has been improved; and

[c]  the costs relating to the stripping activity associated with
that component can be measured reliably.

Other production stripping costs are charged to the profit or
loss as operating costs as they are incurred.

The stripping activity asset is initially measured at cost, which
is the accumulation of costs directly incurred to perform
the stripping activity that improves access to the identified
component of ore, plus an allocation of directly attributable
overhead costs.

If the costs of the inventory produced and the stripping activity
asset are not separately identifiable, a relevant production
measure is used fo allocate the production stripping costs
between the inventory produced and the stripping activity
asset. This production measure is calculated for the identified
component of the ore body and is used as a benchmark to
identify the extent to which the additional activity of creating
a future benefit has taken place. The Group uses the expected
volume of waste extracted compared with the actual volume
for a given volume of ore production of each component.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continved)

Stripping costs (Continved)

The stripping activity assef is subsequently depreciated using
the UOP basis over the life of the identified component of
the ore body that became more accessible as a result of the
stripping activity. The stripping activity asset is then carried at
cost less depreciation and any impairment losses.

Mining rights

Mining rights are sfated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses. Mining rights include the cost
of acquiring mining licenses, exploration and evaluation
costs transferred from exploration rights and assets upon
determination that an exploration property is capable of
commercial production, and the cost of acquiring inferestfs in
the mining reserves of existing mining properties. The mining
rights are amortised over the estimated useful lives of the
mines, in accordance with the production plans of the entities
concerned and the proved and probable reserves of the mines
using the UOP method. Mining rights are written off to profit
or loss if the mining property is abandoned.

Leases
Under IAS 17 (prior to 1 January 2019)

The Group as lessee

Operating leases

leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assefs are accounted for
as operating leases. lease payments [net of any incentives
received from the lessor] are recognised as an expense on a
straightline basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance
leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance
lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments,
each defermined at the inception of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

HREIFBORME »

Leases (Continued)
Under IAS 17 (prior to 1 January 2019) (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continved)

Finance leases (Continued)

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the

HE@wm

BREBERETERNEI75H (R2019F1 8
1B #T) (&)

KNEEEZAA (4#)

MERE (8
HEBAREZHEABERY B RE
FAERNRMERE - BHERBZLH

statement of financial position as finance lease payable. lease
TR EERAREBRAENEE M
BERESHEHBAIE URAEHRE
GH-—REERIEMA K-

payments are apportioned between the finance charge and
the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge
is allocated to each period during the lease ferm so as fo
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as
owned assefs over the shorter of its estimated useful life and

the lease term.
Upon the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the confract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

fime in exchange for consideration.

For contracts enfered into or modified on or affer the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or confains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16
at inception or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are

subsequently changed.

As a lessee

Shortterm leases

The Group applies the shortterm lease recognition exemption
to leases of leasehold properties that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not

contain a purchase option.

lease payments on shortterm leases are recognised as

expense on a straightline basis over the lease term.

92 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Upon the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 (Continued)

As a lessee [Continved)

Right-of-use assets

Except for shortterm leases, the Group recognises right-of-use
assets at the commencement date of the lease [i.e. the date
the underlying asset is available for use]. Rightof-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

The cost of rightof-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement dafe, less any lease incentives received;
and

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assefs in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assefs at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, rightof-use assets are
depreciated on a straightline basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

FEESAREEZERERAF

3.

HREFFBORME o

HE @

201941 81 A B A & BE Bt 75 45 & 2 I
$16%% (@)

EBETNA ()

FREEE

REBEEN AEBEREERB A
(R EEENHFERANE ) BREH
EEE-TRAEEEEKAREEMR
STENMBEBEETSEZ THHEHE
BENTRNEHAESIELARE-

EREEENKRARE:

e HERGEWKIAESH:

o HGHEHMMBAMSK AT
MEERE BEMRENTEAE
EEE K

s AKBEEANEMFMNBEERRAN

BRERERESERTSNSHEBE
EEEFMAENERAEEEMS AK
B amMnE R MESERFHEREHE
AR E-EEMBERT ERABEER
NESENEMA A ERFHEENM
ERNBREEREFE -

AEERNGAVBRARAERAKEREE
E2VNSEFAEE -

2019 &3k 93



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Upon the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 (Continued)

As a lessee (Continved)

lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the inferest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed lease payments (including
in-substance fixed payments] less any lease incentives
receivable.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method] and by reducing the carrying
amount fo reflect the lease payments made.

Taxation

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
fransactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are aftributable to the

rightof-use assefs or the lease liabilities.

For leasing fransactions in which the tax deductions are
atiributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assefs and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
rightof-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
inifial recognition and over the lease ferms due fo application
of the initial recognition exemption.

94 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continved)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is defermined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct
labour and proportion of all production overhead expenditure,
and where appropriate, subcontfracting charges. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15 during the Track Record Period. Transaction
costs that are directly affributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assefs or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly aftributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the
amortfised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
lincluding all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective inferest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial assef is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

®  the contfractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
obijective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

e the confractual terms give rise on specified dates fo cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured af fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the dafe
of initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect fo present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI") if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations" applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Confinued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continved)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that have subsequently
become creditimpaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become creditimpaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period.

If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer creditimpaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate fo the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as

FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assefs at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The nef gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
earned on the financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. HEREHEBUORMEIE @
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) TEMIAR

Financial assets (Continued) ERMEE (8)

Impairment of financial assets T A E R E

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected ANE B AR B BB B 7% R R F 0%
credit losses ("ECL") model on financial assets (including EEBEzeMEE (REES NEME
trade and other receivables, other financial assets measured WHRIE EMiRZESEN AT ECeMEE
at amortised cost and bank balances) which are subject to MIRTHSR)BRBERBAGEEERE ([BHE
impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at EBRBRAETREN L -EHEES
each reporting dates fo reflect changes in credit risk since BEeEREREEHEN URBREER
initial recognition. BB S HERAR EE) -

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible HEBGEEEERERN AT AREER
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. HABEEMBAIRNENEHMERNE
In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion HEEEBEBR-AR  12AEHEESE
of lifetime ECL that is expected fo result from default events (M2EARARAFEERE]) AERHNEK
that are possible within 12 months affer each reporting date. EHMRI2EARAEERENEZENEMNT
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit By PAMEEFR -AHEE
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the EERBEAEERTEEBHELRETN
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of B UYREEEAFTEREZ —REEN
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the JUA RN S B B E AR R KRR AR
forecast of future conditions. TR &0 3T Ak T 1 H A EE o

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade REE-BHRE S EKFIAER = HEH
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually EEER - REEENRYEEERIM
for debtors with significant balances. BEEEAERNEGAEITERIFTE

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss A AEHMTEMS AEBFE2MNEE
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a BEENI2ERAEHEESE HEREE
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the BB B ¥ 2 RERR A 2K 3R BRI 0 - Bl A
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether SEERRTHENCEEBRE -ELER
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant EHEHEEBEENFTELERB VL HE
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since R LA TR B A 38 A B 3 o L B Y R 2 45 AN
initial recognition. i {E o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 55 ¥R 2% Bfi 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Confinved)
Financial assets (Continued)

3.

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instfrument as at each reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information

that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rafing;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
fo cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

®  an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continved)

3.

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(i)

(if)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full {without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
720 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 55 ¥R 2% Bfi 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Confinved)

3.

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

(iii)

(iv)

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more
events that have o defrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is creditimpaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) o breach of confract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

le] the disappearance of an acfive market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered info bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continved)

3.

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

[iv

(v)

Write-off policy (Continued)

Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking info account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
defermined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate defermined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the following basis:

*  Nature of financial instruments [i.e. the Group's
trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables and amounts due from customers are
each assessed as a separate group. loans fo
related parties are assessed for expected credit
losses on an individual basis);
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 55 ¥R 2% Bfi 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continved

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)
[v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

. Past-due status:
*  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e External credit ratings where available.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case inferest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial

asset.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the consfituents of each group continue fo share
similar credit risk characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognised a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset expire,
or when it fransfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Confinved)

HAH R BORBE (@)

€RITAR®

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) THMEERES (8)
Equity instruments #m TR

RETADBENRBEEMEREREE
ENFSBEZNEIMNAHN -SEERET
DT AREWAERENRERRT
XN TE R ©

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity affer deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

KEHKA T EN T B EE
AECRAE (BRESREMENKE .
ENEEFEMEERR) RRIZEHK
AERBRAEIAE -

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to directors and lease liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

ERNEARAECRA B FHRA
EoEHBBRNNER 2% BER
MEDRNFERAFZERABNTEHA
EAFHSERNBE AR A ERLIR G
AARER SN REREFERF R

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rafe is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable, is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would

be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis fo the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a

RIUTEFLHBEE
EEEEASENETERET BURSE
M AREARILERSRAE KL
ANcHABREERDS N REMNKEN
ERNBRER -

B2 R H RN TR

B MEMENRBENTRACEER
HRERAMBERMNZR LB HXANTE
BRIFMRTEY AEKR B SR
BE o

BURS # Bh

BT #8 Bh 7E & I 0 5E A9 & W BN A B &
ENA UMM GEE REQRER
ReomAERTBEREAR AIRAHEY
B A HE AR AU A PAIR R 4t 2 25 78 4 B
HEEHENAERARE -WEREE
ERAH AAAREFARTRAR ¥k
HEEENBRAAERFEFRIZFEUNTE
DHEBREERR-

deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
installments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 55 ¥R 2% Bfi 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continved)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised over time when the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use fo the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
fo payment for performance completed to date. Significant
judgment is required in determining whether the terms of the
Group's confracts with customers in relation to the product
create an enforceable right to payment for the Group. The
Group has considered the relevant local laws that apply
fo those relevant contracts and opinion from external legal
counsel. Based on the assessment of the Group’s management,
the terms of the relevant sales confracts do not creafe an
enforceable right to payment for the Group after taking into
consideration indicators. Accordingly, the sales of products is
considered to be performance obligation safisfied at a point
in time.

[a)  Revenue from sale of marble and marble related products
are recognised at a particular point in fime. This is the
time when legal assignment is completed which is the
time when the customer has ability to direct the use of
the goods and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of the goods.

[b)  Interest income are recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rafe is applied fo the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For creditimpaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied o the amortised cost.
[i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
net asset.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed in
the MPF Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continved)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in the People's Republic of China ("PRC") are required to
participate in a cenfral pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
fo confribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The confributions are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Shortterm and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All shortterm
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
[such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other longterm employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities” carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, inferest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another IFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 55 ¥R 2% Bfi 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based employee compensation
The Group operates equity-seftled share-based compensation
plans for remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of
any share-based compensation are measured at their fair
values. These are indirectly determined by reference to the
equity instruments awarded. The value is appraised at the
grant dafe and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense
in profit or loss with a corresponding credit to share options
reserve, net of deferred tax where applicable. If vesting
periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options expected
fo vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected
fo become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised,
it there is any indication that the number of share options
expected to vest differs from previous estimates. No adjustment
fo expense recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
fransferred to share premium. When the vested share options
are lapsed, forfeited or still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share opfions reserve will
be transferred to retained profifs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tox rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tox assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition [other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probob|e that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporfing period and reduced fo the exfent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rafes that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is seffled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred fax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates fo items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, af the end of the reporting period,
to recover or seflle the carrying amount of its assefs and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends fo
sefile its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group.

[a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
[i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Re|0fed por’ries (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associafe or joint venture of the
other entity [or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other enfity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the some third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third enfity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person idenfified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services fo the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continved)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regu|0r|y to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of
the Group's various lines of business in different geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of productions
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amountfs of its tangible and intangible assefs, to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
defermine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assefs are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be idenfified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the fime value of money and the risks specific
fo the assef for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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3.

112

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated fo be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generafing unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,

amount that would have been determined [net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required fo seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risk and uncerfainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assefs to their original
condition, as required by the terms and conditions of the
lease are recognised af the date of inception of the lease at
the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required fo restore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed
and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Management are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(a)  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group defermines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY  (Confinued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Confinued)

4.

(b)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Group assesses each cash-generating unit annually
to deftermine whether any indication of impairment
exists. When an indicator of impairment exists, a formal
estimate of the recoverable amount is made, which is
considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. The carrying amount of the
tangible and intangible asset, including property, plant
and equipment, rightof-use assets and mining right,
are reviewed for impairment when evenfs or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting
policy as disclosed in the relevant part of this section.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group fo estimate
future cash flows from the cash generating units and to
choose a suitable discount rafe in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Mine reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group's mine reserves are
inherently imprecise and represent only approximate
amounts because of the significant judgments involved
in developing such information. There are authoritative
guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that
have to be met before estimated mine reserves can
be designated as “proved” and “probable”. Proved
and probable mine reserve estimates are updated af
regular infervals taking into account recent production
and technical information about each mine. In addition,
as prices and cost levels change from vyear to year,
the estimate of proved and probable mine reserves
also changes. This change is considered a change in
estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected on a
prospective basis in both depreciation and amortisation
rates calculated on a UOP basis and the time period for
discounting the rehabilitation provision. Changes in the
estimate of mine reserves are also taken info account in

impairment assessmenfs of non-current assefs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 220196124311 EFE
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Confinued)

4.

(d)

(f)

Provision of ECL of trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables are assessed for
impairment based on the expected loss model required
by IFRS 9. The assessment made by management
has taken info account relevant historical information
adjusted for forward looking information available fo
management at the date of assessment [to the extent
that such information is reasonable and supportable
without undue cost or effort]. Provision of ECL are also
recognised for the current year (please see Notes 6 and
24). Management has exercised judgment in estimating
the amount of expected credit loss. If the actual outcome
is different from management's estimate, an additional
impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss may arise.

Provisions for rehabilitation

Provision for rehabilitation is measured in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations applicable in the
PRC at the end of the reporting period, and using the
cash flows estimated to seftle the present obligation. lts
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Provision for litigation

The management measured the provision for litigation
in accordance with the legal opinion and relevant laws
and regulation applicable in Hong Kong and PRC at the
end of the reporting period.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concermn while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation

of the debt and equity balance.

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the Group
consists of debt which includes equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate actions
fo adjust the Group's capital structure. The Group's overall

strategy remains unchanged from prior periods.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and
bank balances, trade and other receivables. Financial
liabilities of the Group mainly include trade payables, other

payables; amounts due to directors and lease liabilities.

Risk management is carried out by the finance department
which is led by the Group's executive directors. The Group's
finance department identifies and evaluates financial risks in
close cooperation with the Group's operating units. The main
risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are liquidity

risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk.
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The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to ensure
that adequate resources are available to manage the above
risks and to create value for its shareholders. The board
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regularly reviews these risks and they are summarised below. U

(a) Categories of financial instruments

(o) ERMITAEZDE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETF T
Financial assets: TREE:
Financial assets at amortised cost REHK AT 2
(including cash and cash equivalents) TREE (BERT K
HeZEED) 111,793 140,670
Financial liabilities: THMAas:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R#IEK AT ER
E@MAE 26,781 21,311
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

6.

(b)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principo”y denominated in the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
monitors ifs foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant inferest bearing assets and
liabilities. The Group's income, expenses and operating
cash flows were substantially independent of changes in
market inferest rates. Fluctuation of market rate does not
have significant impact fo operating cash flows and no
sensitivity analysis has been presented accordingly.

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are held in major reputable financial
institutions located in the PRC and Hong Kong, which
management believes are of high credit quality. The
credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise frade receivables and other receivables arises
from default of the counterparties, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group has no other financial assets
which carry significant exposure to credit risk.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

Ko 75 Rl e 7 PR H AR R BEOR ()

(d) EE R RREEFEME @

(Continued)

The Group sells most of the products to a small number
of customers in the marble distributors. As a result, it
faces a high level of concentration of credit risk. The
Group manages this risk by offering standardised
credit terms to its customers of marble products for
an approved credit term of 90 days. Some major
customers which have long relationship with the Group
were granfed for a longer payment term. The Group
maintains sfrict confrol over its outstanding receivables
and senior management regularly reviews the overdue
balances. In addition, the Group's exposure to credit
risk is also influenced by the individual characteristics of
each customer and default risk of the industry in which
customers operate.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 31%
[2018: 42%) of the total trade receivables was due from
a single customer within the sales of marble and marble
related product segment.

This cusfomer is a privately owned property developer in
the PRC with whom the Group had trading relationship
over the past few years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6. W% R4 o B A J SR o)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment (d) EEREKRBEFMS @
(Continued)
The Group applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to AEBERBEBRM KRS ELEO
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime FEA AN ERHEEEE %
expected credit loss allowance for all tfrade receivables. FERFFBE S BKFIERRZH
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables EHEEEEREE - AT=RHEE
have been grouped based on shared credit risk EEE EZRRREDRE#RNG
characteristics and the days past due. The following FEERBEBRGBRE E-T
table provides information about the Group's exposure REFEEASEFMERNEER
to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: RRESEKRFENTEHREEER
0 & £
2019
2019%
Expected
loss rate  Gross carrying
(Note 1 below) amount  loss allowance
AHEEX
(F3CHiEED) REAE BERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000

% AR® T AR®F T

Current (not past due) B (REH) 8.7% 31,389 2,737
0 - 90 days past due BHOEQOK N/AFiE H - -
91 - 270 days past due BHEAQ1E 270K 33.2% 16,221 5,378
271 =719 days past due WME2/ 12710k 42.7% 34,710 14,837
More than 720 days HBi@/20K 100.0% 116,346 116,346

198,666 139,298
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

6. B Rl BEAT PEH R BUR (#)

(d) EE R RREEFEME @

(Continued)
2018
2018%
Expected
loss rate  Gross carrying
(Note 1 below) amount  Loss allowance
EHBERE
(T XMzED) REAE BREE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AR¥T R AR¥TR
Current (not past due) BNER (REH) = 2,878 -
0 - 90 days past due BHI0ZE Q0K = 33,060 =
91 - 270 days past due BEIO1 B 270K 18.0% 20,283 3,651
271 =719 days past due BHEI2/12719K 32.4% 12,959 4,197
More than 720 days HiE720K Q0.9% 113,602 103,250
182,782 111,098
Notes: B 5 -

1) Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past 3 years. The historical loss rates are adjusted fo reflect
current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified factors fo be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates

based on expected changes in these factors.

The credit quality of other receivables excluding
prepayments has been assessed with reference to
historical information about the counterparties default
rates and financial position of the counterparties.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the credit risk of other receivables is low due to the
sound collection hisfory of the receivables due from
them. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the other
receivables excluding prepayments is assessed to be
close to zero.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of
funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows
from operations. The Group's objective is to mainfain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of interestbearing loans and its own
funding sources.

The Group's financial liabilities have contfractual
maturities as follows:

6. B BR A B E B R BUR )

(e)

REBE SRR

AEBEBEEAEASRABERDS R
EEMHMBRMESKLEMBEREESR
B EREESZEBRAR -AEE
MERREBAERAARERRER
FNESRF #RBESRKAMER
BEOE TR A T o

AEENERABEANTANIHA
ZE R

2019
2019%

Maturity Analysis - undiscounted cash outflows

HHBLN-RERRERY

More than
2 years Carrying
Less than but not amount at
1 year Between more than 31 December
orondemand 1 and 2 years five years Total 2019
#2019%
15/ 260 L 12A318
FREXR 1226 {BFEEHE @t HREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR#TR
Trade payable BHEMNHE 558 - - 558 558
Other payable HH e 8 18,167 - = 18,167 18,167
Amounts due to directors EREZHE 5,991 - = 5,991 5,586
lease liabilities HEERE 1,508 875 196 2,579 2,470
26,224 875 196 27,295 26,781
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z 2019612431 EFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) LIqUIdII’y risk (Continued)

6. B Rl BEAT PEH R BUR (#)

e) RBEEZRAMR 9

2018
2018%

Maturity Analysis ~ undiscounted cash outflows

AR -AERRERH

More than
2 years Carrying
less than But not amount at
1 year Between More than 31 December
orondemand 1 and 2 years five years Total 2018
R2018%
1R BN E 12A318
FREX 1226 BIBRSE st MEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARET T ARETT ARETT
Trade payable ZHRNTE 1814 - - 1814 1,814
Other payable EthEATE 18,433 = = 18,433 18,433
Amount due to directors ERESHA 831 - - 831 831
Obligation under finance lease ~ BATERIE 235 - - 235 233
21,313 = = 21,313 21,31
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

6.

(f)

Fair value

Fair value estimates are made af a specific point in
time and are based on relevant market information
and information about the financial instruments.
These estimates are subjective in nafure and involve
uncerfainties and matters of significant judgment and
therefore cannot be defermined with precision. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

For financial reporting purpose, fair value measurements
are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices [unadjusted] in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

® level 2 inpuls are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assefs
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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(f)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

7. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 7. WO R 43 T R
INFORMATION
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, net WAEEERNFLEE NMKES
of trade discounts and returns and various types of government Prm &R AR Z BEAMAMNME (KA
surcharges, where applicable. F) e
The Group's revenue and contribution to profit were mainly REEBNRAREGENOERETERA
derived from ifs sale of marble and marble related products, REARAEAHEBERNES W
which is regarded as a single operating segment in a manner ﬁ f”EEﬁ—i‘“ ol R = PN TNy
consistent with the way in which information is reported EREEEREEMEERIELKRA
internally fo the Group's senior management for purposes of FHERERN T — o I NREEFE R
resource allocation and performance assessment. In addition, WEFEEEAURTEMOIERERS -
the principal assets employed by the Group are located .lit BREEERREN KE255E
in Sichuan Province and Guangdong Province, the PRC. DA o

Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented other than
entity-wide disclosures.

Entity-wide disclosures EEERHE
Information about products FBREMNESR
The following table sefs forth the total revenue from external TREINFRNIZERE D KREBIIFREP
customers by product and the percentage of total revenue WRKRARERKRANA DL
during the year:
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR% T % AREFTT %
Marble slabs KIB AR 39,892 60.7% 52,567 77 .6%
Marble slags RIBALREE 25,797 39.3% 15,152 22.4%
65,689 100% 67,719 100%
Information about major customers FHRXEEZFHNEHR
Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted for REEEZF(FEZHEBRAHION
10% or more of the total revenue is set out below: A )R AET T
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
Customer A EFEA 20,177 30,812
Customer B ZFB 19,715 21,755
Customer C* ®EC* 17,925 -
* Revenue derived from Customer C did not contribute over 10% of total * HE2018F12A318LEFE - REEFCHEK
revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018. A A AR EE B AR10% A E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. FHALKA KW AR
2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARETT
Interest income FEWA 1 1
Exchange gain bE 5 W 2 10 =
Gain on disposal of property, HEM% KBFEEkRiEB2Z K=

plant and equipment 414 =
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFERBEEEZ WA 10 =
Reversal of provision for litigation, net SRFABE RO EEE = 14,500
Others Hity 332 39
767 14,540

9. IMPAIRMENT LOSS RECOGNISED ON TRADE 9.

9 5 2 IR WAk S 8 - YR A R

RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREF T

Impairment loss recognised on B 5 e W KIAFER
trade receivables A E A 28,200 8,307
28,200 8,307

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BA%S pAR

2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREEFIT
Finance leases charges MEHEER 2 15
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 90 -
Interest on amount due to a director ENESERERE 79 =
171 15

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

11. LOSS BEFORE TAX 11, BBiHIiE 1R
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at affer charging: REENKRTATBELSNBR AT SIEERE
2
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKAE 61,260 63,170
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIXRA(BREEEMNE) :
remuneration):
Wages and salaries TEEF 5,963 6,565
Equity-seftled share option expenses EaEEBRENX 10,954 =
Pension scheme contributions RIREEIHR
— Defined contribution scheme —ERHERETE 43 104
Other staff benefits HihE TEAH 219 153
17,179 6,822
Auditors’ remuneration FETRI S 493 470
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE AT 4 3 18 & R I B 8
payments - 34
Amortisation of intangible assets BEEESH 1,988 -
Depreciation of items of property, ME BEMIEHEBITE
plant and equipment 12,074 13,142
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 1,392 =
Impairment recognised S HE i W R IR RE R 2 R E
on other receivables 34 =
Operating lease rentals for office MAERERE - 5,637
Expenses related to shortterm lease R ERE SRR X 542 S
Provision for litigation i AR 9,401 =
loss on disposal of property, HEME BFELERE2ER
plant and equipment - 1,848
loss on deregistration of a subsidiary HROH o 1B 8 2 R BV BT 4R 1,117 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ Emoluments

() EEM=

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE20195128318LEE

12, T N 4 deo 708 B A
P <

Salaries, Equity-sefled
allowances and Retirement  share option Total
Fees  other benefits  benefits scheme expense emoluments
H& 2R Ri&S
s ARz BAEATE BRENX HesE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(i3 ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Executive directors: YEE:
Mr. Zheng Yonghui BkEEE v - 320 - - 320
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REHLL - 451 21 - 472
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong REREE - 135 - - 135
M. Zhong Weijn FUE4E - 158 - - 158
Mr. Zhang Mian bt il - 141 - 1817 1,958
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHRITES:
Mr. Yang Ruimin Bigts ] 84 - - - 84
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BEREE 106 - - - 106
Ms. Wang Yihua TEERT 106 - - - 106
296 1,205 21 1817 3,339
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BZ18F12831ALEE
Salaries, Equitysefled
allowances and Refirement share option
Fees  other benefits  benefits scheme expense  Tofal emoluments
58 EHR BEiE
we EbilaE  RARHEHS BRERZ e es
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR ARBTTR
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Wang Minliang IRREAE [i = 048 = = 948
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REHLL S 886 S o 886
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong REBAE S 130 S = 130
Mr. Zhang Weijun REBRLE = 151 = = 151
Independent nonexecufive directors: BUFBITES:
Mr. Yang Ruimin BHELE (i) 45 - - - 45
Mr. Ma Ho Yin BEBRLE [iv) 20 - - - 20
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BEREE 102 = = v, 102
Ms. Wang Yihua TEELT 102 = = 5 102
269 2,115 = S 2,384
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

12. DIRECTORS” AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Confinued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ Emoluments (Continved)
Notes:

i) Resigned on 12 September 2018
(ii) Appointed on 4 February 2019
liiij  Appointed on 11 June 2018

(iv) Resigned on 12 March 2018
v/ Appointed on @ April 2019

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for
the executive directors are generally emoluments paid
or receivable in respect of those persons’ other services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Five Highest Paid Individual Emoluments

One (2018: two) of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group were directors whose emolument is sef out in
the above. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the

remaining four (2018: three] employees’ emoluments of

12

CERHW AL AR REBMEA
T 4 ()
() EEME 9
Bt -

(b)

(i) M2018F9 R 12H B E
(i) R2019F2 4B EE
lii)  M2018F6A11HEZRT
iv) M2018F3A12HEE
(v) R2019F4R0OBREE

AXRRTEETIN2HE FUHR
EMFERRZEALTEELRRT
REMBARZEEMREHRZEM
BN EFRRZ — R

hEReHEEEANE

AEBRERSFALTEE A
(2018 MB)EF - EMECH
M EX-BE2019412A31A 1
FE -ARAHBKMA(2018%F: =

the Company were as follows: FZIEREOHMESMT
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARET T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits — # & ~ JEBL M EME WF| =%

in kind 542 1,488
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K48 5+ &I 4 5% - 30
Equity-sefled share option expense RaEEBRERX 7,309 =
7,851 1,518
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

12. DIRECTORS” AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12.

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Confinved)

(b) Five Highest Paid Individual Emoluments
(Continued)
Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

XAl YERE-T=F 2 I=CEPN
M4 )
b) EERSHESEBAME »

BEZHMERLDT

Number of employees

EESE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Emolument band: FrMEE
Nil - HK$500,000 0&500,000% 7t - 2
HK$500,001 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 TE
1,000,000 7T - -
HK$ 1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000 7T - ]
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T =
2,000,000/ 7T - =
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T2
2,500,000 7T 4 S
4 3

(c) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years

ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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13. INCOME TAX

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 $5 ¥R 2% Bfi ¥

13.

P 5 i
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETTT

Current — the PRC BNHER —
— Charge for the year —FEXH
Deferred tax EER IR

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax
rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC is 25% for
both years.

The tax rafe of subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong is
16.5% for both years.

The reconciliation between the income tax for the year and
the loss before tax multiplied by the tax rate in the PRC is as

BRBEPEECEMRBRE(TREMEHOE])
REERMEBORERGS AR RH
ZHBRARRMBEFEZRES H25% -

ARAREBERBZHBRARMEFEZ
MEER16.5% e

FRAEGHREERPERERERZEFA
EBEEERAT:

follows:
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBEFIT
Loss before tax B 5 B B 1B (68,505) (19,270)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of BALEEBE TN AREARE
companies within the Group AHEPTSETRIR (17,126) (4,818)
Tax effect of income not taxable MREENBERM
for tax purpose WA E (105) (4,148)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible MRBEM T HNFHA W
for tax purpose M E 6,980 2,294
Effect on different tax rate of subsidiaries i B A &) 7~ B &1 K 8 52 £ 7,319 2,567
Tax loss not recognised AERHIEE B 2,932 4,105
Income tax Fris i = -

At 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately RMB50,483,000 (2018: RMB77,763,000)
available for offsefting against future profits. No deferred tax
asset (2018: nil] has been recognised in respect of such tax
losses, due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&
13. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Expiry dates of tax losses for which no deferred tax assefs are
recognised are as follows:

13.

B 58 (2
VTEBRAELHEBEENTRIBAEEONE
wm H BN

Amount of tax
losses

BEESESE
RMB'000
ARETF T

Expiry dafe fE % B A
31 December 2020 20204124318 13,720
31 December 2021 2021F12A31H 3,604
31 December 2022 20229F12A31H 10,590
31 December 2023 2023%12A31H 10,841
31 December 2024 20249F12H31H 11,728
50,483

14. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated total comprehensive loss attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019 includes a loss of approximately RMB64,658,000
(2018: RMB8,637,000), which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.

15. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Loss per share — Basic
The calculation of basic loss per share aftributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB68,505,000 (2018: loss of RMB19,270,000)
and the weighted average number of approximately
2,832,083,000 (2018: 2,832,083,000) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

(b) Loss per share — Diluted
For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the
effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive
since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease
in loss per share.

FEESAREEZERERAF

14.

15.

|

A2 T A N AN 47 B 4 i s 4R
A

W

BZE2019F12A31R EHEEARRQ A%
EARGEGEE2EEREARBREERY
AR#064,658,000T (20185 : AR¥E
8,637,0007L)  HERARBNH KR
RANRIE -

BB

(o) BREBE-EX
ARBEBARESRERBREIIR
BARRHEREABEFEBEROA
R #68,505,0007T (20184 : F 1
AKR#19,270,0007T) R FRE #ETT
3% AR NHE T 9 20472,832,083,000
B (20184 : 2,832,083,000/% ) &
BEh-

(b) BREE-#F
HE2018F R2019F12A318 1k
FECRBBELRRGAEREE
YE UWHERBRITEXSELY
BRASHERERRD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&
16. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during 2019, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the reporting period (2018: Nil).

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. S
20194 I 4% [ A 1 &) L i A% A% 3R 1+ 8%
B T AR B - [ R4S HAR LA Sk O
BRI AARE (20184  4&) o

17. W38~ W5 Bzt

Leasehold
improvement
Plantand  and office Motor Mining ~ Consfruction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles  infrasfructure  in progress Total
BEXER
BF HEREE BLERE RE  RRER HBIE Ch
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR AR%TR
COST: RA:
At T January 2019 R2019F1A18 9,232 55,797 11,736 16,222 61,183 109,252 263,422
Exchange realignment ERAE - - 58 48 - - 106
Additions wE - 1,424 88 61 - 1,049 2,622
Disposal/write off e/ - - 4,499) (4,189) - - 8,688)
Write off on deregistration of subsidiary BRI B 2 R - - [1,253) - - - (1,253)
Ai 31 December 2019 #2019612A318 9,232 57,221 6,130 12,142 61,183 110,301 256,209
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENTS: RERWE:
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A18 3,826 20,381 7,012 11,498 13,950 17,390 74,057
Exchange realignment ERAE - - 58 43 - - 101
Provided during the year FREE 576 9,791 507 1,200 - - 12,074
Disposal /wiite off e/ - - 4,476 (4,139) - - 8,619
Write off on deregistration of subsidiary BRI O 2 ) 8 - - (140) - - - (140)
Ai 31 December 2019 #2019612A318 4,402 30,172 2,961 8,602 13,950 17,390 77477
Carrying amount: fREE:
Ai 31 December 2019 #2019612A318 4,830 27,049 3,169 3,540 47,233 92911 178,732
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 220196124311 EFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continved)

17. W3~ B Bt o

leasehold
improvement
Plontand  and office Mining  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment Molor vehicles infrasiructure i progress Total
BERER
BF HRERIEE BRERE nE REBEE  ERIR Rt
RMB'OOO  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'OOO  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARNTR
COST: BA:
At 1 January 2018 ®2018%1A18 9,232 62,955 11,484 17,040 61,183 106,752 268,646
Exchange realignment EHAR S S 200 (185) = = 15
Additions AE - 240 72 - - 2,500 2,812
Disposal /wiie off HE/ M = 7,398 120) (633) - - 8,051)
At 31 December 2018 #2018%12A318 9,232 55,797 11,736 16,222 61,183 109,252 263,422
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENTS: RERAE:
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A18 3,250 16,584 6,256 9,189 13,950 17,390 66,619
Exchange realignment ERAZ - - 98 (234) - - [136)
Provided during the year FREE 576 8,743 678 3,145 - - 13,142
Disposal/write off e/ HH - 4,946) [20) (602) - - 19,568
At 31 December 2018 #2018512A318 3,826 20,381 7,012 11,498 13,950 17,390 74,057
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 December 2018 201845124318 5,406 35,416 4,724 4,724 47,233 91,862 189,365

The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly used
in the Group's sale of marble and marble related products
cash generating unit (the “Sichuan Jinshida CGU"). During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the direcfors conducted
a review of the recoverable amount of the Group's property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and rightof-use assefs
based on the value in use of Sichuan Jinshida CGU. It was
defermined that no impairment loss to be recognised in 2019
(2018: nil] in the Group's property, plant and equipment,
infangible assets and right-of-use assets. The recoverable
amount have been determined on the basis of the value in
use of the CGU, the valuation is prepared by an independent
professional valuer. The pre-tax discount rate in measuring the
amounts of value in use were 23% (2018: 20%) in relation
to Sichuan Jinshida CGU. The growth rate of cash flow in
the long run are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of
3% [2018: 3%). Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows,/outflows
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is
based on the Sichuan Jinshida CGU's past performance and
management’s expectation for future performance.

FEESAREEZERERAF

AEBEZYE BEERBIEARA
SEAEARAREAHBERRSES
Bu([mleREReELEM]) 2
HE - REZE2019F12A31BIEFE -
ExnpRUu)laRERSELEM L

EREERNASEZYE BE RRK

<

»

B EBVEEAREREEE 27 Y@
TR OBER0I9FKEFTHAEE 2
ME-BEREE BRLEEARER
REEMABEERE (2018F &) - A
WoeHEReELEU 2 EREERE
E-BERAEIHBYEXMGEMRER -
ROl EReELENUTEERE
ExBIHAMBEXRS23% (20184 :
20%) HEeEREBEZRAL R EREAI%
(2018F : 3% ) ZIBE R XREH -5 &

ERBEEZEMIERRIRRERA

mbzfhEt BREEHEERENX
BB DIRENI eRERSELE
fzBERRREEEHRKARRZA
B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continved) 17. Y3 B e M s o)

The carrying amount of motor vehicle of approximately MR2018F12A31B-AEZ2HKEE
RMB4,724,000 includes an amount of RMB433,000 in PAREAL724,0007T B8 35 £ iR 1K &
respect of assefs held under finance leases as at 31 December EHERBZEEREEANSBE AR
2018. 433,0007z °
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. ML & &
Mining
rights
PRE R
RMB'000
ARET T
COST: KA
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, F2018F1H1H2018F12A8318 -
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 20191 A1B K2019F12A31H 62,785
AMORTISATION: e
At 1 January 2018 R2018%F1A1H 19,053
Charge for the year FAXH -
At 31 December 2018 ®2018F12A31H
and 1 January 2019 K2019F1A1H 19,053
Charge for the year FARALTH 1,088
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F12A31H 21,041
CARRYING AMOUNTS: BREE:
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F12H31H 41,744
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A31H 43,732
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continved) 18. MEHE )

The infangible asset represent rights for the mining of marble BRVEERARRRBEILANKES
reserves in the Zhangjioba Mine which is located in Jiangyou EEOEM ZBLUMCRFBEMEIIIET
County, Sichuan Province, the PRC. The Mine is operated MG BAARAEEEZENB AR M)
by the Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Sichuan THEHEAZER2A ([T 2
Jiangyou Jinshida Stone Co., ltd.* ("Sichuan Jinshida"). The E)RE-MAFBRAETOINSRKRER
local government granted the mining permits to Sichuan HIOFMRBAAZ  £E20215F2A4]
Jinshida with a term of 10 years to 1 February 2021. HEI8 -

* English translation for identification only

The Group conducted a reviews of the recoverable amount REBMN2019F R2018F =6 H |
of its intangible assets in 2019 and 2018. The Group's BEZAKODGSE - AEB BT EE
intangible assets are used in the Group’s sale of marble and ARAEBREARABAHEBERSR
marble related products cash generating unit (the “Sichuan cELBEM([HIlesRHERSEESE
Jinshida CGU"). Details please refer to Note 17. M) ZHE -FEFL2HEMFEI7 -
No impairment loss was recognised for the years ended HE2019F k2018 12H31H ILF
31 December 2019 and 2018. B WEmERRERE-
19. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FHAT 4 A0 B 500
2018
20184
RMB’000
ARET T
Carrying amount at 1 January R1ATHREREE 1,287
Amortisation for the year FARHH (34)
Carrying amount at 31 December RI2A31BWEEEE 1,253
Prepaid land lease payments represent the acquisition cost of BNLtHEEFREERTEKRERA L
state-owned land use rights in the PRC, which is held under a WERENKA B L IIRIESH
medium term lease. BOFHE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. R E

Leased
Leasehold lands properties Motor vehicle Total
HELH HENE AE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETFT ARETFT ARBTT

Cost: R

At 1 January 2019 [resfated) R2019F1A1H (£=751) 2,457 1,620 - 4,077

Addition wE = 2,685 720 3,405

Disposal HE = (1,620] = [1,620)

At 31 December 2019 R2019F12R31H 2,457 2,685 720 5,862

Depreciation: E:

At 1 January 2019 [resfated) R2019F1B18 (KE75) 1,204 - - 1,204

Charge for the year FEEXH 34 1,275 83 1,392

Exchange realignment PR = 12 1 13

Disposal HE - (625) - (625

At 31 December 2019 M2019512A318 1,238 662 84 1,984

Carrying amount: fREE:

At 31 December 2019 R2019%12R318 1,219 2,023 636 3,878

At 1 January 2019 [resfated) R2019F 1818 (F575) 1,253 1,620 - 2,873

Notes: k]

(i) leasehold lands represents lump sum considerations paid or payable (i) HETHEASER BB FERNEE L
by the Group to acquire leasehold lands located in the PRC. These B s 2 —IRIER(E - RIBE LA E 550
leasehold lands are with lease periods of 48-50 years and there are no ZEHET A AISFESOF AWM
ongoing payments to be made under the terms of the land leases. LIRS

(i) The Group leases two properties and motor vehicle for its operations. (i) AEERELEHENENERTE-WEZ
lease contracts for the properties are entered info for fixed term of 2 HEESKTIAEF BR2F AT R & T 5 &

years and no extension and fermination options. The motor vehicle leases

for 4.5 years and pledged for the corresponding lease liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

21. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 21.
COMPANY

The list below gives the particulars of principal subsidiaries of
the Company which, in opinion of the direcfors, principally
affect the operating results and net assets of the Group. To
give full defails of subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

A E] M A W) Z RE

TRENARBDIEZMBRARMFS -
EERR RERARHEAEENKEEE
ENEEFEBREZZE -ESRA-
AP A M B AR EBREMARE B
RITEK -

Place of Nominal value of issued ~ Percentage of equity

incorporation/ and paid-up share/  interests aftributable fo
Company name registration  Legal status registered paid-up capital the Company Principal acfivities

e,/ BROIRBERR/
NAEE Efib RN EMBRRAZAE ALREEEREIN FEEH

2019: 2018:
2019F:  2018F:
Directly held:
EERA:
Kingstone Indusirial Investment Limited the British Limited liability company Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Virgin Islands
(“BVI")
EhEXREERAT RERAEE BRAMAA [E REER
Success United Asia Lid. the BVI Limited liability company Us$1 100% 100%  Trading of marble slabs
Success United Asia Lid. RBRERHEE BREMLT [E BERBARM
Indirectly held:
REHE:
Kingstone (HK] Group Limited Hong Kong  Limited liability company HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
A (B8 EEARAT BB BREEAT 187 REER
Kingstone (Guangzhou) Mable Industry Co., lid.* the PRC Limited liability company US$50,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and frading of
"Kingstone Guangzhou'| construction materials
SR (BM)AEERAR ([2REM]) HE BREERF 50,000,000% 7T MIREEREMH
Sichuan Jinshida the PRC Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Mining, processing and frading
of consfruction materials

milesE e AREERR AR#10,000,0007 FE MIREEREMH

*

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z 2019612431 EFE
22. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 22.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

8 70t i £

BELEHRBARBENESHWT -

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of a

subsidiary

] e B Bt B 2 )
FRIEEMDARE

A
RMB'000
ARET T

M2018F1H1H-2018F12H318
20191 A1H K2019412A31H

At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018,
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019

608

Deferred tax liabilities related to the PRC subsidiaries have
been provided at an enacted corporate income tax rate of

FRTENBEARMNEEHBERED R
ERMHBRAERRER25%TIREE -

25%.
23. INVENTORIES 23. #ER
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBEFIT
Materials and supplies DRSS L] 363 369
363 369
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. ¥ 5 FEWGKIE
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREEFIT
Trade receivables =07y 1 &0 198,666 182,782
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (139,298) (111,098)
59,368 71,684
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Coniinued| 24. B 5 HEWOSKIH ()
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on AEEREXFPNEZRRTIEREER
credit. Except for certain customers solicited by the Group at A BRAKRBREFEREREERCHE
the beginning of its commercial operation were granted for a METEPERTREREEHRIN FEH
longer credit terms, the credit period is generally three months. A=A -AEBREZHEHKEE
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding EWHRBERERIESH AR EREEER
receivables to minimise credit risk. Trade receivable are non- b B 5 REUBKIER TR -

interest bearing.

An aged analysis of trade receivables, as at the end of the REEHR REERINBEH EFHE
reporting periods based on the goods delivery date, and net WHIE (EHREEERRE) VKRR
of allowance for credit losses, is as follows: m
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBEFIT
0 to 90 days 0£90H 28,652 2,878
91 to 180 days Q1Z=180H - 33,060
181 to 365 days 181E365H 10,843 16,632
Over 1 year [E:3Y S 19,873 19,114
59,368 71,684
Reconciliation of the loss allowance of trade receivables: E5RWHIBE BEBEHRAT:
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AR®EFIT
At beginning of year R E 1] 111,098 102,791
Allowance for the year NEFZEE 28,200 8,307
At end of year RERXR 139,298 111,098
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Confinved) . B 5 oK IE
As at 31 December 2018, included in trade receivables of MR2018% 12831 a‘f)\“ﬁ”%%%ﬁklﬁﬁz

approximately RMB10,352,000 were secured by cerfain

%@AE%]O&SQ,OOO%DA%?@%QJ

properties in the PRC as a collateral [“Properties”). A valuation HmE (TMEDERERYETER B
was conducted on the Properties by an independent valuer _Lﬁﬁﬁﬂia\ﬁ“‘f#@%tﬁﬁ@ REMEZ
and the recoverable amounts of the trade receivables based ~  #[ & FINFEFE B HEWKIE 27 W E

on the net realisable values of the Properties were higher than
the carrying amount (after deduction of tax and estimated
legal costs). Thus no individual impairment loss recognised.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided additional loss
allowance with RMB10,352,000 for the trade receivables

%%ﬁ (BNBEHARGEDEZRZERE) &N
FREE - Bt W EERERREEE -

M2019F12A31H -HRARRIEERA
REFHRLEERL AKERADEFELR

secured by the Properties as the director of the Company ZEZRRFENRBINERBEARE
considered as a default in the current year. 10,352,0007T °
25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. TARFRIE - #4 e I At B WOsK
RECEIVABLES
(a) Non-current portion (o) MBS
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R AREET T
Prepayment for acquisition of WHEY X WEMRKREZ
property, plant and equipment Bt I8 51,330 51,642
(b) current portion (b) REWZ
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Prepayment Ta T FRIE 371 13
Deposits b 2,713 3,185
Others Hh 690 743
3,774 3,941
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. Bla R B&EEHY
The Group's cash and bank balances are all denominated in AEENRES MNBTERBUATIER
the following currencies: FHE:
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARETT
Cash and bank balances: B MRITAERR:
RMB AR 2,404 5,345
HK$ BT 46,546 59,640
us$ Ep 72 73
49,022 65,058
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, ARBETAEHEAKAEMBEE HR
however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control B (hEARKLFMBSNEERED) - K
Regulations, the Group is permitted fo exchange RMB for SEEEEBERELETIERBEHR
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign T BARBKERBBHEME -

exchange business.

27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. B 5 AT RE
Trade payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and EHRNRBERBEM 28 — KRN0
are normally setled in 90 days. An aged analysis of trade BRBEMN-BREEZAH EHEMNKEA
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BEREIR DT AT -
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARET T
0 to 60 days 0% 60H 436 1,765
61 to 120 days 61ZE120H 50 =
121 to 180 days 1212180H - -
Over 180 days 180H LA E 72 49
558 1,814
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

28. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE 28. REEHE &S
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has obligation under M2018FE12A3 1B AEFBHAREZ
finance leases of motor vehicle (Note 17). The lease term is mERERE(NIEI7) - HEAESF-
5 years. The inferest rate is of flat rate from 1.3% to 1.8% per MNERSEBFFLEII3%E1.8%°
annum.
As at 31 December 2019, obligation under finance lease are MR2019F12A31H BMEREERED
classified as lease liabilities. EARHMEAE:-
Present value
Minimum lease of minimum
payment lease payments
REES
REEERE MERE
2018 2018
20184 20184
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARBEFIT
Within one year —FR 235 233
In the second to fifth years,inclusive E_FEFELF - -
(BREEEMSE)

235 233
less: Future finance charges W RR TG E B (2) -
Present value of lease obligations HEAERE 233 233
less: Amount due for settlement AR 2 A NEE R IR

within 12 months (shown under (RARBEaEETE)
current liabilities) (233)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong

dollars.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HEHRME

The exposure of the Group's lease liabilities are as follows:

AEBEHERBEMREEHNAT:

2019

20194

RMB’000

AREBTR

Carrying amount at 1 January R1ATEHEREE =
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 16 BR e R B R B s sl 5 2 R

F16HIEH 2 FE 1,620

1 January (restated) R1ATH (LE7) 1,620

Addition NE 3,085

Repayment during the year FRNEE (1,324)

Imputed inferest HENE 90

Disposal & (1,005)

Exchange realignment bE 55 F B 4

2,470

Minimum lease

Present value of

payments  lease liabilities
REHERE HESERE
2019 2019
20194 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT R
Minimum lease payment due: RATEREEZ JHﬂE)J
KM S HIE
— Within one year ——FR 1,508 1,429
— Within a period of more than one year —BE—FETBBAMEZ
but not more than two years HE A 875 854
— Within a period of more than two years ~ —#B@BMEETHBBAF 2
but not more than five years HER 196 187
Future finance charges R ER (109)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaFERE 2,470 2,470
Amounts due for seflement within R—FERNEEHR
one year [shown under current liabilities) (3\5/\?/|u@]@f IET&EW) 1,429
Amounts due for sefflement affer one year —FREZNNIE
(shown under non-current liabilities) (ﬁAiFuwﬁJﬁfﬁlﬁTiﬂ) 1,041
2,470

The Group leases properties and motor vehicles for operation
and these lease liabilities were measured at the present value
of the lease payment that are not yet paid. All leases are

entered at fixed prices.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z 2019612431 EFE
30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

30. Hfth JE A5 i JE B ME it 22

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR¥ET T
Payables relating tfo: BN B IRA R A ROR
Taxes other than income tax 1B (FTERBRIN) 1,381 1,474
Payroll and welfare TEKER 6,183 6,073
Deposits received ERE 131 98
Accruals and others EstB A MEM 10,472 10,788
18,167 18,433
Note: B EE -
The amounts are unsecured, inferestfree and repayable on demand. FZARERBIER RS RBREREE-
31. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 31. FEATHE S K0H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREFT
Lloans from a director (Note a) REEEMER (HiEa) 4,291 -
Amounts due to directors (Note b) EEEZHIE (HiEb) 1,295 831
5,586 831

Note

(a) The loans from the Group's director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, are unsecured,
interest accrued at 10% per annum and repayable within 1 year from
8 September 2020 to 22 December 2020.

(b) As at 31 December 2019, the amount due fo the Group's director,
Mr. Zheng Yonghui, is unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed repayment term. As at 31 December 2018, the amount due to the
Group's resigned director, Mr. Wang Minliang, is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed repayment term. The carrying value of the
amounts due to directors approximate their fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&
32. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

()

A litigation related to a claim of RMB15 million together
with interest and cost thereon [collectively the “Claim”)
charged by Mr. Shao Weiquan (the “Plaintiff’) against
Sichuan Jinshida, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and others including Mr. Huang
Xianyou, the confrolling shareholder of the Company
and a former owner of Sichuan Jinshida, pursuant to
the guarantees purporfed to be executed by each of
them in 2010 in favour of the Plaintiff in securing the
obligation and liabilities of Guangzhou Jiucheng Mining
Co., Ud ("Guangzhou Jiucheng”), a related party of
the Company, under the loan agreement enfered into
between the Plaintiff and Guangzhou Jiucheng dated
25 July 2010.

In September 2014, Guangdong Province Maoming
City Dianbai District People's Court handed down a
judgment against Sichuan Jinshida in respect of the
Claim. In August 2016, Sichuan Jinshida appealed
against the judgement to Guangdong Province Maoming
City Intermediate People’s Court but the appeal was
dismissed.

In June 2017, Sichuan Jinshida received an enforcement
decision made by the Guangdong Province Maoming
City Dianbai District People’s Court (the “Decision”).
Pursuant to the Decision, the mining right of the
Zhangjicba Mine was seized for a period of three
years.

On 5 July 2018, Sichuan Jinshida entered into a
Seftlement Agreement with the Plaintiff, of which Sichuan
Jinshida and the Plaintiff agreed to seftle the Claim for
RMB21.8 million (the "Settlement Agreement”) which
shall be paid by two instalments namely (1) RMB10
million within 15 business days, after the entering of
the Seftlement Agreement and (2) RMB11.8 million
within four months after the entering of the Settlement
Agreement. The Plaintiff also agreed to discharge
any liabilities of Sichuan Jinshida and forgo any other
claim in connection with the subiect matter upon the full
payment of the Claim.

FEESAREEZERERAF

32.

¥ w78

(a)

EEEE(TRE])HHARQF
BE2ZENBARANIIERERE
BEEELE (ARRANEREERER
mINERENREAA)FZEMA
TREFD REEBEOAFEEFSA
R20010FARERILMERAR
AMBAETEMNAKRBEEAR A A
(TEMARK]) R RS 8 EIMNAK
M2010F7A25B R LM E R
FEATEGRAEENER BRA
E#15,000,0007T & [F 18 B8 7 &
RER(BRBEATHER]) -

R2014F0R BEREAKXKATEH
BARERFROCHEERR
R -R2016F8 8 Ml & &
ERAEREXEMARARERRE
HERF B ERERE -

R20175F6R W BERER
REAKEBMEARARZARELH
BHATREE(IREE]) R
BREE  REBELOREER
EH=F-

R20184€7 A58 M)l & B %
REFTLM@BHE B mlld
NEHREREMBREITNE
FfR4EAARE21,800,0007T
(IFEwmzl)  BomBIM: (1)
AR M10,000,0007% 7 5T 37 F &
HEREBISEEEB AN K(2)A
E#11,800,0007T B T 3 F 2 1
FENEARZIMN - RETRER
BEENPRRERABROEIISRKED
AMETEREEBFENSENT
fAEMEBR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z 2019612431 EFE
32. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(Continued)

The Group made a provision of RMB37.5 million in
relation to the Claim for the year ended 31 December
2017. As a result of the Setlement Agreement, a gain
on reversal of a provision of approximately RMB15.7
million will be reflected in the profit and loss account of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

On 8 August 2018, the Company received a writ of
summons (the “Writ") issued in the Court of First Instance
of the High Court of Hong Kong under Commercial List
Action No. 5 of 2018 [the "Action”) by Mr. Li Jioju (the
“Plaintiff") against Kinwin International Investment Limited
(the “1st Defendant’), a company wholly owned by a
former director, the Company (the “2nd Defendant”)
and the former director (the “3rd Defendant”), in relation
to a claim for the sum of approximately HK$23.7
million plus inferest and costs against the 1st Defendant
or alternatively, a claim for a sum of approximately
HK$21.2 million plus interest and costs against the
Company or alternatively a claim for the sum owned by
the 1st Defendant against the 3rd Defendant, pursuant
to a loan agreement between the Plaintiff and the 1st
Defendant and an alleged deed of assignment that was
executed between the Plaintiff, 1st Defendant, the 2nd
Defendant. The Company considered no provision made
for the case as this proceeding is sfill at its early stage
and the Company is highly unlikely to incur any further
liability as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018.

On 22 August 2018, the High Court of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region ["High Court”] handed
down a judgement to dismiss the application for
summary judgment from Zhongtai International Wealth
Management Limited (the “Plaintiff’) which is the financier
of Royal Moon for underwriting of open offer announced
by the Company on 14 May 2015, for a claim that
the Company is liable to account to the Plaintiff for
Wrongfu”y returning the balance of fund of opproximote\\/
HK$61.4 million from the open offer bank account to
Royal Moon on the ground of the alleged breach of trust
and/or breach of equitable/fiduciary duties.
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32.

PREA T ()

(a)

(b)

(c)

(%)

AEBEREBEE2017F12R31
BLEFEERBERFRBEBARE
37,500,0007T = M 7° F % 175 &%
SEKENREZ2018F12A31H 1k
FEMNBERARBOREGZ s
HARME15,700,0007T

R2018F8A8H KRR EEZE
XEEE(TRE])RIZE20185H
EHBIFAESH ([Farl) REE
BEERRFEEHHEBERKRER
BARAR([F—%KE] —HA
MEEE2EHBAZRR) AR
A(E-R®EDEAEES ([F
=wmEDBEENEASK (IS
M) AREARBEREEE —
SRV ZERBEERERSE —
WE B _WERILZ —NERE
BRE HEF-WERLEEY
23,700,000 T = mMA B & &M
ZRE AHHARAREEELY
21,200,000 T mMA B &% &R
ZRME - SE B = E R
F—RERNEBZIRE-AAF
R B R B AT E R FF A V) H R
B HR2019F12H31H8 k2018
FI2A3TEBARR T KAGESL
EgE— R E WAL ERUFR
B

M2018F8H228  EERFRIITH
BEeFEik ((RFEKR]) TEH
RO P REREBIESER QA
(TRE]) (ERARAR2015%F
SAVABRHZrHBEERHA/E
ARKES)NBRZHREF R
THRARBEARRFABEERT
RPHERIMAEAREESHELY
61,400,000 TtmmREE L&
T EhARBERERGRAR L&
REF¥/ RIEEME-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 220196124311 EFE
32. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(c)

(d)

(Continued)

The Plaintiff is claiming for equitable compensation
and/or damages, and/or account of profits on the
ground of the Company’s breach of trust, together with
an order fo pay to the Plaintiff such sum as may be
found due or payable, including relevant interests and
costs. The Plaintiff is also seeking for a declaration that
the Company is liable to account to the Plaintiff for the
balance of the fund in the open offer account of the
Company or such other sum as the Court thinks fit on the
ground of its breach of trust.

The Company considered no provision made for the
case as this proceeding is sfill at its early stage and the
Company is highly unlikely fo incur any further liability
os at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

On 8 August 2018,

notification of proceeding served by Guangzhou

the Company received a

City Huangpu district People’s Court pursuant to
which Mr. Caiyou (the “Plaintiff’) commenced a legal
proceedings against Sichuan Jinshida (o wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) [the “1st Defendant”),
Kingstone Guangzhou, (the “2nd Defendant”) and other,
due to the disputes of an agreement dated @ August
2013 for assignment of loan between Sichuan Jinshida
(as assignor] Mr. Cao You (“Mr. Cao”) [as assignee)
and Guangdong Huaxia Financial Guarantee Co.,
(as guarantor of the assignment agreement) pursuant
fo which Sichuan Jinshida has agreed to assign and
Mr. Cai has agreed to accept Sichuan Jinshida's rights,
title, interest and benefits in and to the loan at a fotal

consideration of RMB40,000,000.

Pursuant to the civil compliant, the plaintiff claims
against Sichuan Jinshida and other defedants (i) to
rescind the assignment agreement and an alleged
supplemental agreement, (i) to return the deposit and
part of considerafion in amount of RMB8.0 million in
aggregate, i) to pay compensation of RMB5.0 million.

FEESAREEZERERAF

32.

PREA T ()

(c)

(&)

RERARAERGEMREGF
WEL/LBEEHEE KRR
FIBME YERESINEEER
BAEBEN 2B BEAEN
ERER- RENESRKEEAR
AIRARBIARBERF ZEE R
EMAREALLEFEHERRBRE
BZEMEE BARARAER
EE

ARBRBR AREBADERFR
JEREE BER2019F12H318 &
2018F12A31H A & KA &
EEEFNE-—FEE RLE K
IR -

R2018F8A8H AR REEE
M EIE R ARER X EZFDRB
Mol B#REEE(IRSDEY
milekE (FREEAN) HEAL
EELRE] - FREBA)RE
REEREEFRER2A (FRE
EHHEIERA) ZHEFT LN B H
R2013F8A0R 2 B EE A
FEFEMHHARBZ2EHE
AR EEE(E-HKE])
SABEM([FE-WE]) FRELHF
BoREZHE DI EHEER
EEZAZELLECREEMADNIIE
HEHZEERZAZEN A
B Eakias BRERARE
40,000,0007T -

REZREFEHFMA REERN
N & B 3= e B b % & (i) BUSHE %
EEmhELBEAERHE ()R
BERahRBorREBEARXARE
8,000,0007 - (iii) X HEE & A
E#5,000,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z 2019612431 EFE
32. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(d)

(Continued)

On 18 December 2019, Guangdong Province
Guangzhou City People’s Court of Huangpu District
handed down a judgment against Sichuan Jinshida in
respect of the claim. The Company filed an appeal
petition at the Guangdong Provincial Guangzhou
Municipal Intermediate People’s court (the “the
Guangzhou Court’). The hearings were made in April
and early May 2020. The Guanghzhou Court has not
yet handed down judgments in respect of the appeal
petition of the Group as af the date of this annual report.

A provision for litigation of approximately RMB10.6
million (2018: RMB1.2 million) regarding this case was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2019.

33. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION

32.

i n A )

(d)

(%)

R2019F 128188 BR & E M
T E A E AR 4RI £ B2
ERRTRF - AATEAERS
BN BARER (TEMEBR])
B R ® BB R202084
ARSAMBIT-RAEHREH &
WERM RS HEBAEE LF2
2 #sk o

BHE2019F12HA31BLF E -
ERUBERFDBEEHEOARE
10,600,000 (20185 : AR%
1,200,0007%) °

33. AR

RMB’'000
AR¥T T

At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, W2018F1A1H2018F12A318
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 2019F1A1H K2019F12H31H 2,697

RARERE AEEANKEERE
BETLH -BEDRBSHRRES

The Group is required to make payments for restoration and
rehabilitation of certain land after the sites have been mined.

The Provision is measured in accordance with the relevant

rules and regulations applicable in the PRC at the end of the

reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

34.

35.

SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
Number of shares Share Capital
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREMBEC.IBIZEEBR R&HEE PR 7
‘000 RMB’'000
TR ARBTT
Authorised ETE
1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, 75/\201 8F1A1
1 January 2019 and ]8¢12ﬂ3
31 December 2019 01941 A1
]Q¢]2ﬂ3 150,000,000 1,215,275
Issued and fully paid BERITRERE
1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, 75’\201 8F1A1
1 January 2019 and 18¢12)5J3
31 December 2019 O19F1 A1
]Q¢]2ﬂ3 2,832,083 24,435
RESERVES 35. il fi
Contributed reserve A RE
It represents the aggregate amount of the consideration of BARBESKRERRR ARG SH T
RMB24,480,000 paid to the former owners of Sichuan JI| & B 3 1 ?‘1 %‘J MM 2008F3 A 14

Jinshida by the ultimate controlling shareholder to obtain
the control over Sichuan Jinshida by 14 March 2008 after
nefting off the investment cost of RMB10,000,000 paid by
the Group on the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Sichuan Jinshida from the ultimate controlling shareholder
pursuant fo the reorganisation, as if the acquisition had
been completed from the beginning of the year ended
31 December 2010. The corresponding liability of the
investment cost of RMB10,000,000 payable to the ultimate
controlling shareholder arising from the acquisition pursuant
to the reorganisation was classified as a current liability
as at 31 December 2009 and the balance was seftled in
November 2010

FEESAREEZERERAF

BATEME)IEEEZENATERAINOHA
REARMK24,480,0007T  £MK K
SERRBEARNKKERBRRKED
N B 2 BB A RE T ST OB AR A
E#10,000,000t B kEEEE
REZE2010F12A31B IEFE R B E
TR -BARBEEAETHRESFEMES
MENRRERBRRRERAARKE
10,000,000t H) #E & & & 2 M 20094

1I2AVEDERRBDEE MEZBERE
R2010F 11 RIBE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 36. M b HE w8
2011 Option Scheme 201 1 FEB IR RE ST &1
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
2019%12A31H 2018%12A318
Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number of  average exercise Number of
price per share options price per share options
SR ME B
TFHTRE BREZE FHTEE BREHA
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
b TR BT T
Outstanding at beginning of reporting period REEBIRITE 0.66 65,002 0.66 65,002
Share options granted during the year FERRLERE
- fo direcfors -MES
Cranted during the year ERRE 0.1172 198,246 = =
Outstanding at end of reporting period RBEBRKRITER 0.25 263,248 0.66 65,002
Exercisable at end of reporting period RBEBRATTE 0.25 263,248 0.66 65,002
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a R EFE R E R TT 80 B8 AR #E &) hn 4
weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.72 vyears FHFBRE KRG 72F (20184 -
(2018: 7.97 years) and the exercise prices range from 7O7F)RITHREBEN F0.0972/8 T
HK$0.0972 to HK$7.97 (2018: HK$0.0972 to HK$7.97). £7.97%m (2018F :0.0972F T =
7075 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued) 36. HERCRESTHE] (o)
The exercise price and exercise period of those share M2018F12A31H K2019F 12831
options outstanding under the 2011 Option Scheme as at B ZER201 1 FHBREFEETHAR
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are as follows: TEBRENTEEMITERNT
Exercise
Number of  price per
options share  Exercise period
BREBE SKRITEE TEB
‘000 HK$
T BT
At 31 December 2019 1,351 7.97  Three tranches in proportion of 50%, 25% and
R2019%F12A31H 25% exercisable form 4 November 2011,

4 November 2012 and 4 November 2013
to 3 November 2021, respectively.

1250% ~ 25% R25% N LBl E=4t - H 7RI B
20114611 H48 2012911 A48 k20134
1M A48 ZE2021F11 A3 IEA F17{E e

3,464 1.74  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
B2014F6 268 E2024F6A25H 1E

3,290 1.74  From @ June 2014 to 8 June 2024
B2014F6HOB#E2024F6H8H 1

4,849 1.63  From 19 December 2014 to 18 December

2024 12,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or affer 19 December 2014;
and 24,000,000 opfions offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.

BH2014F 128198 E2024F12H18H Lt
B 12,000,000 BB #E ] A2014F 12
R19B k2 %171 - R H#I24,000,00017
BRI R2015F 1281988 2 1817(F -

4,848 1.65  From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
BH2015F1 A12B8E2024F 123158 1k
47,200 0.0972  From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027
B2017%11 A23HRE2027F11 228 1t
198,246 0.1172  From 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029
BH2019F4 8150 E2029F4 3148 1+
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued) 36. B AEHE (o)
Exercise
Number of price per
options share  Exercise period
BREHE SRITEE TEH
‘000 HK$
T BT
At 31 December 2018 1,351 7.97  Three tranches in proportion of 50%, 25% and
R2018%F12A31H 25% exercisable form 4 November 2011,

4 November 2012 and 4 November 2013
to 3 November 2021, respectively.

1250% 25% R25% BILL Bl A E=#E - H Rl &
201111 H48 2012411 H4H k20134
1THARRZE2021F11A3A LA 1T~

3,464 1.74  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
B2014F6 208 E2024F6 4258 1E

3,290 1.74  From @ June 2014 to 8 June 2024
B2014F6 OB E2024F6H8H 1k

4,849 1.63  From 19 December 2014 to 18 December

2024 12,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2014:
and 24,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.

B2014F 1281988 E2024F12H18H Lt
B H12,000,00017 BB #EA] A 2014412
A19B s 2 #&77{F - R#E HA924,000,00017
BRI R2015F 1281908 2 877fF -

4,848 1.65  From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
B2015F1 4128 E2024F 128158 1k
47,200 0.0972  From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027
B2017%11 23R E202/7F11H228 1t

The fair value of those share options under the 2011 Option REBZE2019F12A3 1B LFEARIE
Scheme granted during the year ended 31 December 0N FEEEASRLENBREARR
2019 was approximately HK$12,447,000 (equivalent B4 AE12,447,0008 T (HERHAR
fo approximately RMB10,954,000) of which the Group #10,954,0007L) EFRAEBEERE
recognised as equity-settled share option expense F2019F12A3 B L FE R E R4
of HK$12,447,000 (equivalent to approximately HERREMZ12,447,000% T (FHER
RMB10,954,000] during the year ended 31 December #HAREE10,954,0007T) °

2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinved) 36. BEBEREETH] ()
No share option granted during the year ended 31 December HZE2018F12A31A EFEHMER T
2018. B IR -
The fair value of equity-setiled share options granted during the REARBHEREEBEREQLLER
year was estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial RERMEA —BEAEXTFUGH B
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon PEFRELBREROGRRLGE-T
which the options were granted. The following table lists the REY 2R PE A A BUE

inpufs fo the model used:

Share options ~~ Share options ~ Share options  Share options  Share options  Share opfions  Share options

granted fo granted fo granted fo granted fo granted fo granted fo granted fo

employees direcfors employees directors employees directors employees

HEE mES aEE mES aEg MESEH mESRH

RLBRE RLBRE RHBRE RHBRE RLBRE BRE BRE

Date of grant R AH QJune 2014 26 June 2014 30 December 2014 12 January 2015 23 November 15 April 2019 15 Apiil 2019

2017

201456898 201486A268 2014%12A8308 201518128 20174118238  2019%4R158 2019548158

Dividend yield (%) REE(%) 3.12% 3.12% 3.12% 3.12% - - -

Expected volatility (%) BHRE%) 40.29% 40.35% 40.04% 39.68% 80.18% 77 .84% 77.84%

Riskree interest rate (%) ERBFIE (% 2.06% 2.04% 1.89% 1.59% 1.75% 1.63% 1.63%

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had approximately MR2019F12A31H - AR AR ERE

263,248,000 (2018: 65,002,000) share options 8l N H#263,248,00010 (20184 -

outstanding under the share option scheme. The exercise 65,002,00017 ) i & 17 (£ B8 I # - 1R 1%

in full of the outstanding share options would, under the RAAGBAIORAERE 2ETERAR

present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue TTREBRERSEHIEITL263,248,000

of approximately 263,248,000 (2018: 65,002,000) g (20184 : 65,002,000/ ) &N A 7] 58

additional ordinary shares of the Company. SNE AR

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had approximately 20196 12A31H - KRR K ERE

263,248,000 (2018: 65,002,000) share options FTEI T B #263,248,00013 (20184 ¢

outstanding under share option schemes, which represented 65,002,00017 ) & R 17 5 B8 M4 - 1h 5%

approximately 9.30% (2018: 2.30%) of the Company's BARABDETRMNA.30% (2018
shares in issue as at that date. F:2.30%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

37. COMMITMENTS

(a) Commitments under operating leases
As lessee
The Group leases cerfain land premises and buildings
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms for 2 years with an option for
renewal after that date, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated.

At each end of reporting period, the Group had fotal
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

37. R

() E&EHEE
1EHAEEA
AEBBRKERNLTHERRE T
HWYEREF LEFHHBARTE
WAEEREBAEBER BN
ERREEENER-

2018
20184
RMB'000
ARET T

Within one year —F RN

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

1,875

F_EZFRF (BREREMF) 185

2,060

(b) Capital Commitments
At 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group had

outstanding commitments as follows:

(b) BEAERE
20184 B2019412A310 « &
SEEBRBITAENT

2019 2018
20194 2018%
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT
Capital expenditure in respect of B ELERTLE
purchase of property, MR BERZ
plant and equipment contracted EHBENE W&E
for but not provided in the RFER@zZERMAX
consolidated financial statements 8,830 8,518
Capital expenditure in respect of B ELERELE
construction of property, BHRERERBZ
plant and equipment contracted BEHRZEME BB
for but not provided in the RimZERAX
consolidated financial statements 6,800 6,800
15,630 15,318
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

(b)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BT 5
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the R BHmREM FRAEEEIN KK
Group had the following significant related party transactions: EEEUTERBEIRS :
(a) Key management compensation (o) TEEEEMS
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits o IERHEMBA 2,451 3,282
Pension costs — defined contribution BRAREKAE - T
scheme HRETE 37 15
Equity-sefled share option expense BREEBRERX 1,817 S
4,305 3,297
Interest on amount due to a director (b) ENESRERER
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARET T
Interest on amount due to a director FEfTE BRI & 79 -

The interest incurred from the loan from the Group's
director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, at 10% per annum.

FEESAREEZERERAF

ERMNEELBASEESHKE
EERENER FMEREH10% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

39. DEREGISTRATION/DISPOSAL OF A 39. WUk H B i 2 ]
SUBSIDIARY
@) On 26 March 2019, the Group applies to deregister (a) M2019F3HA20B AEEBRF K
wholly owned subsidiary, Zhuhai Jinxin Gold Enterprise TENBRARAKSEESEL ¥
Management Co., Ltd.* (“Zhuhai Jinxin"). The EEERAR([KE£E])IUHE
deregistration cost is RMB4,000 and complefed on Af-ERABETMA RN R AR
5 September 2019. 4,000t K2 R2019F9A5H %
7 o
Assets and liabilities derecognised at the date of BOHEMEBRRIERZEERE
deregistration was approximately RMB1,113,000. BEHR/ARKET, 113,0007T « BUH
loss on deregistration of subsidiaries is approximately AMMEARNBEREORARK
RMB1,117,000. The deregistration cost is RMB4,000 1,117,000 BUEsEfM A AN B A
and is satisfied by cash. The Group incurred a cash R¥4,000 RAREGER -BAR
outflow of RMB4,000 due to the deregistration. BEaEM AEEEAReREA
R#4,0007T °

* English translation for identification only

RMB’000
ARBTR
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 1,113
Net asset BEFE 1,113
Non-controlling inferest FEE A & =
1,11
Exchange reserve realised R IRE N e -
1,113
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries HUBR MM B ARz EE (1,117)
Deregistration cost HOH & B (4)
Satisfied by: =ENpEvE
Cash Re 4
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash ERBUREMHMBARNRE KA
equivalents in respect of the deregistration of a SEEYRLFENOITAOT
subsidiary as follows:
RMB’000
AR®BTR
Deregistration cost HUH E B AR (4)
Net oufflow cash and cash equivalents FRBCHAMMBRARNER R
in respect of the deregistration of a subsidiary IR & Z B H F 58 (4)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31 B L&

39. DEREGISTRATION/DISPOSAL OF A 39. BTNkt B B 2 ] )

SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

(b)  On 22 November 2017, the Group entered into a sales (b) R2017F11A228 » A% [H H 5
and purchase agreement with independent third party, YE=RFEIZEE B AL E LA
to dispose 100% shareholding of Jiangyou Kingstone TOAEEREREAARARNZ MK
Properous Marble Co., ltd., at a consideration #-REABARKO6600,000TT " %
of RMB600,000, the disposal was completed on HEETHEENR2018F3A826H =
26 March 2018. BX °

RMB’000
ARBT R
Property, plant and equipment ME- BEREE 174
Cash and cash equivalent ReERBFEEFEY 1
Trade and other payables B 5 KR H A A IR (437)
Net liabilities BEFHE (262)
Non-controlling inferest FEIE R & -
(262)
Exchange reserve realised EEREN#E 296
34
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBERR ZKE 566
Consideration RE 600
Satisfied by: BRI
Cash Re 600
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash FHRLEMBARNREREESE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries as EBYMRNFENDFAT
follows:
RMB’000
ARBTR
Cash consideration ReRE 600
less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of Al : BEHER & RBELEEY 1
Net inflow cash and cash equivalents FRLEHBARNERES R
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ReFEMRAFE 599
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z 2019612431 EFE
40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER

40. RATR12H31H ZMBRLFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARMIEE -
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE K& 66
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 2,660
2,726 =
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE - Be RE MR RIE
receivables 319 7,125
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEEY 46,274 59,540
46,593 66,665
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals H A &~ SR IB N AT B A 4,048 2,670
Amounts due to directors BN ESRE 5,586 831
Llease liabilities HEAE 1,429 -
11,063 3,501
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 35,530 63,164
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABERE
LIABILITIES 38,256 63,164
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBAE
lease liabilities HEAE 1,040 -
1,040 -
NET ASSETS EERE 37,216 63,164
EQUITY E=
Share capital &% 72 24,435 24,435
Reserves (Note) RIS 12,781 38,729
TOTAL EQUITY R 37,216 63,164
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors HEFEMN2020F5A 11 B &E RKE
on 11 May 2020. T 2 -

Zhang Cuiwei Wang Yihua
BES ThE
Director Director
S ol
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 220196124311 EFE
40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER (Continved)

40. RAFR12A31H ZBHBAR IR

(%)

Note: B 5
Reserve movement of the Company KRBEEZS
Foreign currency
Share Accumulated Share option translation
premium losses reserve reserve Total
R E E5y 1 BRERE HNERERE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
A 1 January 2018 #0181 818 221,144 (97,196) 25,115 (11,033) 138,030
Total comprehensive loss FEZEEBREE
for the year - (141,341) - 42,040 (99,301)
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F12A318 &
1 January 2019 2019%1A18 221,144 (238,537) 25,115 31,007 38,729
Total comprehensive loss FREEFEAR
for the year - (37,635) - 733 (36,902)
Grant of share options B HERE - - 10,954 - 10,954
At 31 December 2019 R2019612R318 221,144 (276,172) 36,069 31,740 12,781

41. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board on 11 May 2020.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Ao 2 I WA R

Year ended 31 December
HBZ12HA31HLELEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
20154 20165 20174 20184 20194
RMB'OOO  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR%EFTR
Revenue WA 3,680 12,290 31,383 67,719 65,689
Profit/(loss) before tax BRALER, (BE)  (198,940) (124,548) 7797 (19,270 (68,505)
Income tax credit FTisfiE e 2,675 - - - =
Profit/[Loss) for the year FEHEA, (EHE) (196,265)  (124,548) 7797 (19,270 (68,505)
RMB cents  RMB cents  RMB cents  RMB cents  RMB cents
ARES ARES ARES ARES AR%¥%
Basic earnings/(loss) per share FREARF
(B8) (58.7) (27) 0.5 (0.7) (2.4)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL wR A BB IR DLER
POSITION
As at 31 December
R12B31H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
2015% 2016% 20174 20184 2019%
RMB'OOO  RMB'O0O0  RMB'0O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREFTT ARETT AR¥ETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 207,401 270,660 247,046 285,992 275,684
Current assets mEEE 124,158 40,762 220,093 141,052 112,527
Total assets BEE 331,559 311,422 467,139 427,044 388,211
Current liabilities mEEE 121,772 138,327 53,768 22,511 36,341
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 3,936 3,719 3,506 3,305 4,346
Total liabilities BwAad 125,708 142,046 57,274 25,816 40,687
Net assets/Total equity FEE/ B 205,851 169,376 409,865 401,228 347,524
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